

## **SOC APPROVALS**

### **December 11, 2024**

The following proposals were approved at the December 11, 2024 meeting of the Subcommittee on Undergraduate Academic Courses (SOC).

## **FACULTY OF ARTS AND HUMANITIES**

### **DEPARTMENT OF ENGLISH AND WRITING STUDIES**

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

#### **ENGLISH 2032F/G HARRY POTTER**

##### **Course Description**

The phenomenal success of J.K. Rowling's *Harry Potter* series may relate to its roots in a variety of genres including the gothic novel, detective fiction, fantasy, and adventure. This course studies all seven books alongside other novels and short stories that illustrate the generic conventions used and adapted by Rowling.

**Antirequisite(s):** English 2092F/G if taken in any year from 2013-2024.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

#### **ENGLISH 2034F/G YOUNG ADULT LITERATURE**

##### **Course Description**

This course examines literature for and about adolescents to interrogate what it means to be an adolescent and how the adolescent experience is represented in literature. Focusing on texts written from the 1940s on, we use key critical and theoretical debates to understand YA literature's place within larger scholarly trends.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

**ENGLISH 3724F/G  
BANNED AND CHALLENGED BOOKS**

**Course Description**

Students will read a variety of banned, challenged, and controversial books for children and young adults. In focusing on such books, we consider the impetus behind challenging books, what it tells us about a particular historical moment, and what it tells us about literature in general.

**Prerequisite(s):** At least 60% in 1.0 of English 1020-1999 or permission of the Department.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

**MAJOR IN ENGLISH LANGUAGE AND LITERATURE**

**Admission Requirements**

Completion of first-year requirements, including 1.0 course from English 1020 - 1999 with a mark of at least 60%. Students will be eligible for an Honours BA with double major if they obtain a 70% average in the courses of each major module with no mark less than 60% in each course. No failures are permitted on options.

**Module**

6.0 courses:

**1.0 course in a Survey of Literary Traditions** from: English 2301E, English 2401E, English 2501E, English 2601E.

**1.0 course in Theory** from: English 2200-2260, English 3200-3210, 0.5 of this requirement may be substituted from Theatre Studies 3205F/G, Film Studies 3371F/G, or Writing 2215F/G.

**1.0 course in Pre-1800 Literature** from: English 3300-3349, English 3440-3449, English 3540-3549, English 3640-3649, (but not English 3333E (Huron)).

**1.0 course in Post-1800 Literature** from: English 3350-3399, English 3450-3499, English 3550-3599, English 3650-3699, English 3700-3799, English 3850-3899.

**1.0 course** from: English 2000-3999; 0.5 of this requirement may be substituted from Medieval Studies, Theatre Studies or Writing numbered 2200 to 3999.

**1.0\* course** from: English 3000-4990.

**\*Note:** Students enrolled in a Major Module in English as part of an Honours Double Major must complete 0.5 course in English numbered English 4000-4990. It is strongly recommended that those students interested in applying to a Master's degree complete 1.0 courses numbered English 4000-4990.

**Note:** French or a foreign language is recommended for students intending to apply to graduate schools or professional programs.

**Note: This Major cannot be combined with any of the following modules in the Department of English and Writing Studies: the Minor in English Language and Literature, the Minor in English for Teachers, or the Minor in General English.**

## IVEY BUSINESS SCHOOL

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

### **BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION 4404A/B CORPORATIONS AND SOCIETY: GLOBAL BUSINESS AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOALS**

Short title: (C&S Global Business and SDG's)

#### **Course Description**

This course explores the contemporary economic, social, and environmental challenges in our interconnected world and why corporate and societal objectives may not coincide and how governments and civil society try to realign them.

**Antirequisite(s):** Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4557A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4608A/B.

**Extra Information:** 20 classes of 80 mins each delivered twice a week.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HBA/HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN NUTRITION AND DIETETICS**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the **Brescia** School of Food and Nutritional Sciences **in the Faculty of Health Sciences** ~~at Brescia University College (and the Faculty of Science).~~

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA) and an Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics (Bachelor of Science). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the **Brescia** School of Food and Nutritional Sciences ~~at Brescia University College (and the Faculty of Science)~~ and follow the normal curriculum for the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics module. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5. Admission requirements for the combined program are outlined below.

## Admission Requirements

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete a minimum of 10.0 courses including Business Administration 2257. In Year 1 they must complete the admission requirements as specified in the current Academic Calendar for entry into the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics module offered by the **Brescia** School of Food and Nutritional Sciences ~~at Brescia University College (and the Faculty of Science).~~

In Year 2 students must enroll in the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics and satisfy the minimum progression requirements for the second year of that Honours Specialization. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process. In addition, students must normally attain a minimum weighted average of 78% in the first year of the HBA.

Students apply for the combined degree program during the HBA 1 year, typically their third year of University. Applications to the combined program must be made in writing to the ~~Senior~~ Academic Advisor ~~at~~ **in the** Brescia **School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~University College~~ and to the HBA Program Office by the deadlines published by the Richard Ivey School of Business.

### Year 1

**5.0 courses** including 3.5 required courses:

**3.5 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B, Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B, Biology 1290B, Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B, Physiology 1021.  
**1.0 course** from: Humanities.

### Year 2

**5.5 courses:** Business Administration 2257, Chemistry 2003A/B (or Chemistry 2213A/B), Biochemistry 2288A (or Biochemistry 2280A), Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2230A/B, Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G, Foods and Nutrition 2449A/B, Human Ecology 2222A/B, 0.5 Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology course at the 3000 or 4000-level.

### Year 3 (HBA1)

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of

management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

No substitute for any of the above courses is permitted under any circumstances.

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Years 4 and 5 – except Business Administration 4569 which must be taken in Year 4)

### **5.5 courses:**

**0.5 course:** International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B.

**0.5 course:** Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

**0.5 course:** Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B.

**1.0 course:** Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569.

**3.0 courses:** Additional business electives [choice of 4000-level business courses]. These must be taken at the Ivey School of Business and cannot be substituted with other Western courses.

### **Years 4 and 5** (Nutrition and Dietetics)

**7.0 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 3342A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3344A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3348A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3351A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3355A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3361F/G, Foods and Nutrition 3390W/X, Foods and Nutrition 4429A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4453A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4460A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4471A/B, 1.0 Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology course at the 3000 or 4000-level.

**0.5 course** from: Humanities or Social Science courses at the 2000 level or above.

### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

### **Progression Standards**

Students in the combined program must meet the progression standards of each Faculty or School. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000 level HBA courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 75% in their Honours Specialization module and meet all other progression requirements of the Honours Specialization module in which they are enrolled.

### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Nutrition and Dietetics program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

### **Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

~~At~~ **In the** Brescia **School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~University College~~, students will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in the usual way in Years 1 and 2, and at the end of Year 5 by considering all Foods and Nutrition courses that have been taken in Years 4 and 5. Students who take at least 2.0 Foods and Nutrition courses in Year 4 will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in that year on the basis of those courses.

### **Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BSc in Foods and Nutrition - Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

### **Graduation with Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

### **International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined HBA/ Nutrition and Dietetics degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and the **Undergraduate Program Office in the Brescia School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~Associate Registrar, Student Success at Brescia.~~

### **Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN HEALTH SCIENCES/HBA**

The combined program takes five academic years to complete. Students are registered in the combined program for Years Four and Five. The specifics may change as courses change in each faculty. It is assumed that students do not take more than two years of Health Sciences course work prior to beginning HBA1.

### **Admission Requirements**

Students apply for the combined program during their HBA1 year. To be eligible for admission for the combined program, students must complete all requirements for the first two years of the Honours Specialization in Health Sciences, obtain a minimum two year average of 80% and achieve a minimum 70% in Business Administration 2257. Demonstrated participation in extra curricular and/or community activities, leadership and work experience are also required. In addition, students must attain a weighted rounded average of 78% in the HBA1 year. Admission to the combined program is competitive and limited. Upon completion of the combined program students will receive two degrees: a BHSc with an Honours Specialization in Health Sciences and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program.

### **Module**

#### **First Year**

All students, including those admitted via the AEO route, must complete the following first-year requirements:



Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, Health Sciences 1300A/B; ~~Biology 1201A and Biology 1202B or~~ Biology 1001A and Biology 1002B.

### **Second Year**

All students, including those admitted via the AEO route, must complete the following second-year requirements:

4.5 courses: Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800; Business Administration 2257.

### **Year 3 (HBA1)**

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

**All students will take:** Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

No substitute for any of the above courses is permitted under any circumstances.

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5, except Business Administration 4569, which must be taken in Year 4)

### **2.5 courses:**

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **2.5 additional business elective courses.**

## **Years 4 and 5 (Health Science)**

**0.5 course:** Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**0.5 course** in Health Research Methods from: Health Sciences 3811F/G, Health Sciences 3840A/B, Health Sciences 3910F/G, Health Sciences 4200F/G, Health Sciences 4205A/B, Health Sciences 4240F/G, Health Sciences 4250A/B.

**0.5 course** in Ecological Health from: Health Sciences 3010F/G, Health Sciences 3025A/B, Health Sciences 3071A/B, Health Sciences 3240A/B, Health Sciences 3250F/G, Health Sciences 3650F/G, Health Sciences 3704A/B, Health Sciences 4220F/G, Health Sciences 4505F/G, Health Sciences 4615F/G.

**3.0 courses** from: Rehabilitation Sciences, Health Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 2010-level or above (not otherwise selected).

**1.0 course** from: Health Sciences at the 4000-level.

### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

### **Progression Standards**

Students in this combined program must meet the following progression standards:

Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year Three) must attain a minimum weighted rounded average of 78%.

In Years Four and Five, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA courses and a minimum weighted average of 75% in their Health Sciences courses.

### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Health Sciences program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either or both of the individual programs, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

### **Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined degree program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in

calculating averages for the purpose of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. The Dean's Honour List for HBA2 typically includes the top 25% of all of HBA2 and is determined by vote of the teaching faculty. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Faculty of Health Sciences<sup>s</sup>, students will be adjudicated for the Dean's Honour List based on all courses taken in the academic year (i.e., September – April) provided the student is registered in a minimum of five courses. In addition, an average of 80% must be achieved on all courses taken toward the BHSc degree with no failed courses.

### **Graduation With Distinction**

A student who receives an overall average of 80% and no grade lower than 70% on the entire program with no failed courses will receive the designation graduation "With Distinction".

### **Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined Honours Specialization in Health Sciences/HBA degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Undergraduate Program Office in the School of Health Studies.

### **Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs.

Contact the Office of the Registrar, Western Student Services building, RM 1120, 519-661-2100 or at [www.registrar.uwo.ca](http://www.registrar.uwo.ca) for details.

## **Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HBA/BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music (Honours) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

### **Admission Requirements**

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Music (Honours). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Music (Honours), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

### **Module/Program Information**

#### **Year 1**

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.  
3.5 courses: Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.  
0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

## Year 2

**Ensemble:** One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

**3.0 courses:** Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

**1.0 course** from the Faculty of Music.

**1.0 course:** Business Administration 2257.

## Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

**All students will take:** Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

## Years 4 and 5 (5.0 Music courses and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

Music (5.0 Music courses must be taken over Years 4 or 5).

From Year 3 of the BMus (Honours) program:

**0.5 course:** Music 3924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913) or 0.5 music elective.

**1.5 courses** at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y and Music 4924Y.

From Year 4 of the BMus (Honours) Program:

**0.5 course:** Music 4924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

**1.0 course** at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

**1.5 courses** from the Faculty of Music.

**Note:** In the Bachelor of Music (Honours) program, no more than 8.0 courses may be numbered 1000 to 1999. **A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## **HBA2**

Years 4 and 5 (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

### **2.5 courses:**

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **3.5 additional business electives.**

## **Progression**

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Music (Honours) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has

met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Music (Honours) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

### **Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

### **Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

### **Graduation With Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

### **International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

### **Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

## **Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HBA/HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN MUSIC**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Specialization in Music and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music with Honours Specialization in Music in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

### **Admission Requirements**

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Arts with Honours Specialization in Music. Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Arts with Honours Specialization in Music, including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

### **Module/Program Information**

#### **Year 1\***

**2.0 courses:** Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G.

**3.0 non-music courses.**

#### **Year 2**

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G.

**1.0 course:** Business Administration 2257.

**Up to 2.5 additional courses in Music.**



## Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

### All students will take:

Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K,  
Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K,  
Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K,  
Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K,  
Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

**Years 4 and 5** (5.0 Music courses, and up to 2.5 additional courses in Music if not completed in Year 2, and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

A minimum of 7.5 Music elective courses must be completed for the module in Years 2 through 5 at the 2000-level or above.

\*First-year students must include 1.0 course from each of two of the three categories (A, B, and C). At least 1.0 course must be chosen from each of the three categories (A, B and C).

\*\*No more than 7.0 courses numbered 1000-1999 may be used to fulfill the BA degree requirements.

\*\*\* A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and** Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

## HBA2

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

### 2.5 courses:

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **3.5 additional business electives.**

#### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

#### **Progression Standards**

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the BA (Honours Specialization in Music) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in the Music module, and a passing grade in each option.

#### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or BA (Honours Specialization in Music) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

#### **Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

**Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with Honours Specialization in Music and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

**Graduation With Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

**International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined Music/HBA degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:****HBA/MAJOR IN MUSIC**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Arts with Major in Music and a Bachelor of Arts in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the BA (Major in Music) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

**Admission Requirements**

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Arts (Music Major). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for years one and two of the Bachelor of Arts (Music Major), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

## Module/Program Information

### Year 1\*

**2.0 courses:** Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G.

**3.0 non-music courses.**

### Year 2

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G.

**1.0 course:** Business Administration 2257.

**Up to 2.5 additional courses in Music.**

### Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

**All students will take:** Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

**Years 4 and 5** (2.0 Music courses, and up to 2.5 additional courses in Music if not completed in Year 2, and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

A minimum of 4.5 Music elective courses must be completed for the module in Years 2 through 5 at the 2000-level or above.

\*First-year students must include 1.0 course from each of two of the three categories (A, B, and C). At least 1.0 course must be chosen from each of the three categories (A, B and C).

\*\*No more than 7.0 courses numbered 1000-1999 may be used to fulfill the BA degree requirements.

\*\*\* A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and** Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

## **HBA2**

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

### **2.5 courses:**

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **3.5 additional business electives.**

#### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Arts (Music Major) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000 level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in the Music module, and a passing grade in each option.

#### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Arts (Music Major) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

**Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

**Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with Major in Music and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

**Graduation With Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

**International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

**Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

## **FACULTY OF ENGINEERING**

### **JOHN M. THOMPSON CENTRE FOR ENGINEERING LEADERSHIP AND INNOVATION**

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

#### **INTEGRATED ENGINEERING 2299A/B INTEGRATED SYSTEMS AND DESIGN**

##### **Course Description**

Introduction to classical systems engineering and associated methods, tools and practices, as well as interdisciplinary frameworks for addressing systems-level challenges. Students will gain knowledge across topics including: the Systems Engineering V-model, human-centered design, modeling and simulation, Design for X, sustainability, sociotechnical systems, interface and risk management, and human decision making.

**Antirequisite(s):** IE 2298, or the former IE 2297A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 2 or higher in Engineering.

**Extra Information:** 4 lecture hours per week. Accreditation units:  
Complementary Studies = 50%, Engineering Design = 50%.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

**INTEGRATED ENGINEERING 2399A/B  
SYSTEMS ENGINEERING PROJECT**

**Course Description**

Introduction to classical systems engineering and associated methods, tools and practices, with application experienced through multidisciplinary design projects. Students will apply the skills and knowledge gained in design theories and software techniques.

**Antirequisite(s):** IE 2298.

**Prerequisite(s):** IE 2299A/B.

**Extra Information:** 4 lecture hours per week. Accreditation units: Engineering Design = 100%.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

**ENGINEERING LEADERSHIP AND INNOVATION 4400A/B  
STRATEGIC INNOVATION COMMERCIALIZATION**

(Short title: Strategic Innovation Commerc.)

**Course Description**

This course explores the commercialization potential of generational technologies like artificial intelligence and data driven technologies, from the perspectives of the intellectual property strategist and the patent engineer. This class will provide engineers with the ability to identify, generate, and strategically use intellectual property and data assets to drive businesses.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 3 or higher in Engineering.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours per week. Accreditation units: Complementary Studies = 100%.  
Course Weight: 0.50



Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

**ENGINEERING LEADERSHIP AND INNOVATION 3000A/B  
MANAGING THE INNOVATION PROCESS**

**Course Description**

~~This course targets the essential aspects of building technology-based businesses and how to identify technology innovation capability for use within existing businesses or new start-ups. Students analyze the firm's goals, strengths, weaknesses and opportunities leading to reasonable marketing strategies and action plans. Students learn to make decisions in the face of uncertainty.~~

**Students will explore the interplay between innovative design and commercial success. Students will apply a human-centered design approach to understand why technologies succeed/fail, and to investigate how design iteration can lead to innovation when used as a tool to elicit and test a customer's unspoken needs.**

~~Antirequisite(s): The former Engineering Science 3331A/B.~~

~~Prerequisite(s): Completion of year 2 Engineering or enrollment in year 2 Software Engineering.~~ **Enrollment in Year 2 or above in Engineering.**

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours **per week.**  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**INTEGRATED ENGINEERING 2298  
INTEGRATED SYSTEMS ENGINEERING AND DESIGN**

**Course Description**

Introduction to classical systems engineering and associated methods, tools and practices, with application experienced through ~~team-based, interdisciplinary~~ **multidisciplinary** design projects. Students will gain knowledge across topics ~~that include~~ **including:** the Systems Engineering V-model, human-centered design, modeling and ~~optimization~~ **simulation**, Design for X, sustainability, **sociotechnical systems, interface** and risk management, and human decision making.

**Antirequisite(s):** MME 2259A/B, the former Integrated Engineering 2297A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Integrated Engineering.

**Extra Information:** 4 lecture hours. Accreditation units ~~Engineering Science~~ **Complementary Studies** = 25%, Engineering Design = 75%.  
Course Weight: 1.00

## DEPARTMENT OF MECHANICAL AND MATERIALS ENGINEERING

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### **MECHATRONIC SYSTEMS ENGINEERING 3360A/B FINITE ELEMENT METHODS FOR MECHATRONIC SYSTEMS ENGINEERING**

#### **Course Description**

Overview of the finite element method (FEM) and its use to solve general problems in 2-D and 3-D. Applications include structural mechanics, heat transfer, thermal stress, electromagnetism and radiation. Methods and applications of optimization in support of engineering design are also introduced.

**Antirequisite(s):** MME 3360A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Engineering Science 1036A/B or Computer Science 1026A/B, NMM 2270A/B or the former Applied Mathematics 2270A/B, MME 2202A/B or MSE 2212A/B or CEE 2202A/B, MME 2204A/B or MSE 2214A/B, ~~MSE 2202A/B or MME 2259A/B or ES 2297A/B or IE 2297A/B, MSE 2200Q/R/S/T.~~ **Pre or**

**Corequisite(s): MSE 2202A/B or MME 2259A/B or IE 2297A/B or IE 2298.**

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours, 2 tutorial hours, 2 laboratory hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

## **FACULTY OF HEALTH SCIENCES**

### **ARTHUR LABATT FAMILY SCHOOL OF NURSING**

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

#### **NURSING 1060A/B FOUNDATIONAL CONCEPTS OF PROFESSIONAL NURSING I**

##### **Course Description**

This course provides an introduction to the philosophical, theoretical and ethical tenets of the nursing profession. The historical development of the profession, image of nursing, roles of nurses in the interprofessional team, and the framework for Registered Nursing practice in Ontario are explored.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

#### **NURSING 1070A/B HEALTH PROMOTION AND CARING FOR SELF, COLLEAGUES AND CLIENTS I**

##### **Course Description**

This interactive course enables the student to develop an understanding of caring and relational practice as the basis for health promotion in nursing. Nurses' responsibility for health promotion of self, colleagues, and clients is addressed in a variety of contexts.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 1160A/B  
FOUNDATIONAL CONCEPTS OF PROFESSIONAL NURSING II**

**Course Description**

Building on part I, this course enables students to begin to develop the thinking processes and clinical judgement required for professional nursing practice from a strengths-based perspective. Students will begin to develop their personal philosophy of nursing practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Nursing 1060A/B, with a grade of 65% or greater

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 1170A/B  
HEALTH PROMOTION AND CARING FOR SELF, COLLEAGUES AND  
CLIENTS II**

**Course Description**

This interactive course building upon Health Promotion and Caring for Self, Colleagues and Clients I, enables the student to continue to further develop an understanding of caring and relational practice as the basis for health promotion in nursing. Using a variety of theories, concepts and conceptual frameworks, the student will acquire an enhanced perspective of how individual values, beliefs, perceptions and experiences impact relationships with our selves, colleagues and clients.

**Prerequisite(s):** Nursing 1070A/B, with a grade of 65% or greater

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 2220A/B  
HEALTH PROMOTION & CARING: FAMILIES AND COMMUNITIES**

**Course Description**

This course provides students with opportunity to deepen their understanding of health, empowering health promotion, and caring in the context of family, community and populations across the lifespan. Normal growth and development, family health, and community health are addressed.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Year 2 Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 2221A/B  
PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE: FAMILIES AND COMMUNITIES**

**Course Description**

This course will provide students opportunity to apply and integrate theory related to family and community health into nursing practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Year 2 Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 4 clinical hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 2230A/B**

**HEALTH PROMOTION & CARING: SUPPORTING HEALTH**

**Course Description**

This course addresses health promotion and caring with clients experiencing barriers to health and requiring support to maintain and improve health.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Year 2 Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 2400A/B**

**FAMILY AND COMMUNITY HEALTH**

**Course Description**

This course provides a philosophical and theoretical foundation for understanding family and community health issues. Primary health care, health promotion, social determinants of health and population health are critically examined as they relate to family and community health nursing practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours. All 1000-level courses in the program must be completed successfully before enrolling in 2000-level courses.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 3324A/B  
COMMUNITY HEALTH PROMOTION**

**Course Description**

This course provides a philosophical and theoretical foundation for understanding community health issues. Primary health care, health promotion, social determinants of health and population health are critically examined as they relate to community health nursing practice in Nursing 3325W/X.

**Antirequisite(s):** Nursing 3331 with a minimum average of 65%.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Corequisite(s):** Nursing 3325W/X

**Extra Information:** 3 theory hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 3325W/X  
PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE III: COMMUNITY HEALTH**

**Course Description**

This course provides students with the opportunity to develop their knowledge and skills in health promoting nursing practice within communities. Students will engage in learning experiences in community agencies and neighbourhoods, working through a process of community health assessment, planning, implementation, and evaluation.

**Antirequisite(s):** Nursing 3332 with a passing grade.

**Corequisite(s):** Nursing 3324A/B.

**Extra Information:** 16 clinical hours.

Course Weight: 1.00



**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 3380F/G  
HEALTH PROMOTION AND CARING IN RURAL CONTEXTS**

**Course Description**

Theory, practice, research and issues related to nursing in rural and remote settings will be examined. The health status of various rural populations, related public policy and the factors influencing health of rural residents will be explored.

**Prerequisite(s):** Completion of Year 2 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program, or special permission.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 3420A/B  
PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC HEALTH**

**Course Description**

This course has been designed to explore foundational knowledge, skills and abilities necessary for the practice of public health nursing. The focus will be on the Public health nursing competencies including public health sciences, assessment and analysis, policy development, program planning, implementation and intervention, partnership, advocacy, diversity, therapeutic communication, leadership, and professionalism in independent practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in year 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4403A  
ADVANCED HEALTH ASSESSMENT AND DIAGNOSIS I**

**Course Description**

Concepts and frameworks integral to advanced health assessment and diagnosis in nursing practice are introduced. Comprehensive and focused health assessment, including history taking, physical assessment and diagnostic reasoning as well as laboratory and diagnostic test selection and interpretation for the adult client are emphasized, laying the foundation for clinical decision-making from data collection to diagnostic plan of care.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 3 theory hours and 3 practice hours, term one.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4404B  
ADVANCED HEALTH ASSESSMENT AND DIAGNOSIS II**

**Course Description**

This course builds on and applies the skills and frameworks, concepts and methods of health assessment and clinical decision-making studied in AHAD I to specific populations across the lifespan, to families and to the community. Advanced practice skill pertaining to diagnostic test assessment is examined.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 3 theory hours and 3 practice hours, term two.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4405A  
THERAPEUTICS IN PRIMARY HEALTH CARE I**

**Course Description**

Concepts integral to pharmacotherapy, advanced counselling and complimentary therapies related predominantly to common episodic conditions of clients across the lifespan are introduced. Emphasis is on the therapeutic care plan approach which focuses on drug-related problems, goals of therapies, analysis of different therapeutic approaches, need for referral, monitoring parameters, acceptability to the client, and follow-up.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 3 theory hours and 3 practice hours, term one.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4406B  
THERAPEUTICS IN PRIMARY HEALTH CARE II**

**Course Description**

This course builds on the knowledge acquired in AHAD I and Therapeutics I and applies the frameworks and concepts of pharmacotherapy, advanced counselling, and complimentary therapies predominantly to clients with chronic conditions and special populations.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 3 theory hours and 3 practice hours, term two.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4490Y  
PATHOPHYSIOLOGY FOR NURSE PRACTITIONER**

**Course Description**

A systems approach is used to examine concepts in pathophysiology as a basis for advanced nursing practice. A case study approach provides a comprehensive overview of the etiology, pathogenesis, and clinical manifestations of diseases in adults and children. Builds upon knowledge of normal anatomy and physiology across the lifespan.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4491Y  
NURSE PRACT ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES**

**Course Description**

Examination of the roles and responsibilities of the primary care nurse practitioner, historical development, relationships with clients and other health providers, legal and ethical issues, scope of practice and functioning in interdisciplinary teams, primary health policy formulation and political strategies are addressed.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Withdrawal – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be withdrawn:**

**NURSING 4497  
INTEGRATIVE PRACTICUM**

**Course Description**

The final course in the program, builds upon knowledge and experience gained in previous courses and integrates theory with practice. Consists of concurrent seminars and practica, evaluated separately. Seminars use problem-based and case study methods. Practica in urban and rural health care settings are based upon student learning needs.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Primary Health Care Nurse Practitioner Certificate program.

**Extra Information:** 6 hours seminar, 29 hours practice.  
Course Weight: 1.00

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1040A/B  
FOUNDATIONAL CONCEPTS OF PROFESSIONAL NURSING PRACTICE**

**Course Description**

Students critically examine the historical development of nursing and the framework for Registered Nursing practice, including the philosophical, theoretical, and ethical tenets of the role. Using a variety of theories and conceptual frameworks, students acquire an understanding of how individual values, beliefs, perceptions, and experiences influence perspectives and nursing practice.

**Antirequisite(s):** **The former** Nursing 1060A/B and **the former** Nursing 1070A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1050A/B  
ACADEMIC AND PROFESSIONAL STRATEGIES FOR SUCCESS IN  
NURSING**

**Course Description**

Students will acquire strategies to transition into the university and the BScN program which will help them acquire the foundational skills necessary to succeed both academically and in professional nursing practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program **or the Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.**

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1080A/B  
HOLISTIC HEALTH ASSESSMENT I: COMMUNICATION FOR HEALTH  
ASSESSMENT**

**Course Description**

Development of communication skills including therapeutic communication and health history acquisition is addressed in this course. Students engage in learning opportunities to enhance capabilities in therapeutic communication, interviewing, and relational practices with clients across the lifespan. Students document client care in accordance with legal standards of practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 2 lecture hours and ~~Laboratory Practice~~ **2 simulation hours.**  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1120A/B  
COMMUNITY MODELS OF CARE**

**Course Description**

Students critically examine models of care and sources of knowledge in community nursing practice including public health, community home health and primary healthcare. Applying principles of primary healthcare, social justice, and equity, students critique how policy, practice, culture and societal norms impact health of the individual, family, community and population.

**Antirequisite(s):** **The former** Nursing 2220A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or the Compressed Time Frame BScN Program

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1180A/B  
HOLISTIC HEALTH ASSESSMENT II: SYSTEMATIC HEALTH ASSESSMENT**

**Course Description**

In this course, application of clinical judgement models provide students a framework to convey information from health assessments as a foundational part of nursing practice. Conducting a focused examination of clients using a system based approach enables students to utilize theoretical components of health assessment in the laboratory environment.

**Prerequisite(s):** Nursing 1080A/B, with a grade of 65% or greater.

**Extra Information:** 2 lecture hours and **2 laboratory hours** ~~Laboratory Practice~~.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1190A/B  
ENACTING SOCIAL JUSTICE & EQUITY IN NURSING PRACTICE**

**Course Description**

Introduction to social determinants of health, social justice and health equity are foundational components in this course. Impacts of policy, politics, power, and privilege are investigated to understand how historic healthcare system inequities continue to disadvantage and marginalize specific populations. The impact of colonizing practices is threaded throughout the course.

**Antirequisite(s):** **The former** Nursing 1070A/B and **the former** Nursing 1170A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1201A/B  
FOUNDATIONS OF NURSING PRACTICE**

**Course Description**

The philosophical, theoretical and ethical tenets of the nursing profession are essential components to understanding the professional nursing role. In this course students are introduced to the history, image and framework of nursing practice, self-regulation, nursing organizations, self-awareness and emotional intelligence, interprofessional collaboration, the nurse-client relationship, and professional communication.

~~**Antirequisite(s): the former Nursing 1200W/X.**~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50



**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1330A/B  
HUMAN ANATOMY FOR NURSING STUDENTS**

**Course Description**

A gross anatomical description of the systemic structure and function of the human body. Emphasis will be placed on clinical nursing applications.

**Antirequisite(s):** Anatomy and Cell Biology 2200A/B; Health Sciences 1300A/B; Health Sciences 2300A/B, the former Health Sciences 2330A/B, Kinesiology 1060A/B, Kinesiology 2222A/B. Note: Nursing 1330A/B must be taken if any of these antirequisite courses have been completed with a grade less than 60%.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 1 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 3 theory hours, **1 laboratory hour**.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 1335A/B  
HEALTH ASSESSMENT**

**Course Description**

In this course application of clinical judgement models provide students a framework to convey information from health assessments as a foundational part of nursing practice. Conducting a focused examination of clients using a system based approach enables students to utilize theoretical components of health assessment in the laboratory environment.

**Antirequisite(s):** ~~the former Nursing 1222A/B, the former Nursing 1225A/B,~~ Nursing 1180A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 2 ~~asynchronous-online~~ lecture hours, 2 laboratory hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2010A/B  
SPECIAL TOPICS IN NURSING**

**Course Description**

Selected topics in Nursing. Topic and course description available in the Undergraduate Programs Office.

~~Antirequisite(s): Antirequisites and/or additional prerequisites to be determined based on the topic offered.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2231A/B  
LABORATORY & SIMULATION: SUPPORTIVE CARE FOR CLIENTS WITH  
NON-EMERGENT HEALTH ISSUES**

**Course Description**

Using laboratory and simulated practice, students utilize nursing knowledge and skill in client safety and evidence-informed practice to support health. Issues of care delivery focusing on unique and diverse individual responses, beliefs and building capacity for restoration of health are components of the course.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 2 **of the** Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program.

**Extra Information:** Laboratory and Simulated Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2270A/B  
NURSING CARE FOR OLDER ADULTS**

**Course Description**

Aging is a major factor impacting healthcare delivery in the 21st century, and older adults are the core consumers of health care. In this course, students apply clinical decision-making by correlating physiologic, psychological and environmental interactions with older adults while focusing on cultural, social, ethical, and legal concepts of care.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 2 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

~~Corequisite(s): Nursing 2271A/B.~~

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2271A/B  
LABORATORY & CLINICAL APPLICATION: ENGAGEMENT IN CARE**

**Course Description**

Students are introduced to the fundamentals of nursing practice by employing physical and communication skills in the care delivery for older adults in laboratory and practice settings. A focus on building relationships, the nursing role, and system transformation will be examined.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~the~~ Year 2 **of the** Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program.

**Extra Information:** Laboratory and Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2440A/B  
PATHOPHYSIOLOGY**

**Course Description**

Students will analyze the development of human disease by exploring common health related problems including the age-related, genetic, environmental, and behavioural influences on disease development. While further developing critical thinking in nursing care, changes to the structure and function of tissue and organs and resultant clinical manifestations will be examined.

**Antirequisite(s):** Pathology 2420A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** One of Nursing 1330A/B, Kinesiology 1060A/B, Kinesiology 2222A/B, Health Sciences 2300A/B, Anatomy and Cell Biology 2200A/B; AND one of Physiology 1020, Physiology 1021, Physiology 2130, Physiology and Pharmacology 2000, or registration in **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2500Q/R/S/T  
LABORATORY: MEDICATION ADMINISTRATION**

**Course Description**

This course focuses on safe, effective and ethical administration of medications.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** Laboratory Practice, 6 weeks. Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 0.25

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2600A/B  
MENTAL HEALTH CARE**

**Course Description**

Students are introduced to the nursing role in providing mental health care emphasizing awareness, prevalence and stigma associated with mental health challenges across the lifespan from a strength-based perspective.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2630A/B  
NURSING CARE FOR CLIENTS WITH ACUTE AND CHRONIC HEALTH  
CHALLENGES I**

**Course Description**

The complexity of health issues requires students to utilize multiple sources of information to understand how these conditions impact the individual, family, and society. Using clinical reasoning, focusing on integration of assessment, students develop knowledge and skill in client-centred care planning for optimal health outcomes.

~~Antirequisite(s): The former Nursing 3600W/X.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 2 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program, or the Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 2660Q/R/S/T  
SIMULATION: MENTAL HEALTH**

**Course Description**

Students will apply their knowledge and skills with clients experiencing mental health challenges. Practice will take place in a simulated environment.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** Simulated Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 0.25

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3010A/B  
SPECIAL TOPICS IN NURSING**

**Course Description**

Selected topics in Nursing. Topic and course description available in the Undergraduate Programs Office.

~~Antirequisite(s): Antirequisites and/or additional prerequisites to be determined based on the topic offered.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3310A/B  
HEALTH IN A GLOBAL CONTEXT**

**Course Description**

Understanding how contextual factors impact health in countries or regions with limited resources is important for understanding the nurse's role in advancing health policy in a local and global perspective. Through examining current events analyze issues of social justice in health and health care.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 3 **or 4** of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program, or the Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3311A/B  
PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE IN GLOBAL CONTEXT**

**Course Description**

A supervised practicum in which students will provide culturally-appropriate care. Health promotion, caring, mutual goal-setting, social justice, and advocacy will be addressed in situations of limited resources. Preparatory and follow-up activities are required.

~~Antirequisite(s): Health Sciences 3251F/G.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** ~~Nursing 3310A/B, p~~ **P**ermission of the ~~Program Office,~~ **Arthur Labatt Family** School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 4 weeks, 40 hours/week, Summer term.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3400A/B  
APPROACHES TO MENTAL HEALTH CARE**

**Course Description**

~~This course covers~~ foundational concepts of mental health and nursing care in the context of mental illness, including addictions. Key course principles include health promotion, a recovery orientation, trauma and violence-informed care, stigma reduction, and the continuum of mental health. Learning includes participatory engagement in mental health assessment and therapeutic communication.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~Year 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3410A/B  
GERONTOLOGY: CARE OF THE OLDER ADULT AND THEIR FAMILIES**

**Course Description**

This course examines concepts associated with caring for the geriatric population through a holistic, strengths-based lens. Students will focus on common health syndromes, social factors influencing health, and family considerations, to provide the context for addressing the unique care needs of the aging adult.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~Year 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50



**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3430A/B  
PERINATAL HEALTH - THROUGH THE CHILD BEARING CONTINUUM**

**Course Description**

~~The promotion of perinatal health is an integral component of professional nursing practice.~~ This course provides a philosophical and theoretical foundation for understanding individual, newborn, and family health issues throughout the ~~childbearing continuum from~~ preconception, pregnancy, labor, birth, neonatal transition to six weeks postpartum ~~and for developing nursing interventions to promote perinatal and newborn health.~~ **Applications to the development of nursing interventions that promote perinatal and newborn health are also discussed.**

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~Year 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3440A/B  
ONCOLOGY - CARE OF INDIVIDUALS AND FAMILIES THROUGH THE  
CANCER CARE CONTINUUM**

**Course Description**

This course will provide opportunities to develop an understanding of the cancer care continuum for clients and families. Students will focus on key concepts related to prevention, screening, diagnosis, management, palliation and survivorship within oncology care.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~Year 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3450A/B  
THE ROLE OF THE HOME CARE NURSE WITHIN PATIENT/CAREGIVER  
ENVIRONMENTS**

**Course Description**

This course ~~will~~ explore **s** the roles that nurses perform in home care nursing practice. Exploration ~~will be~~ **is** guided through two mid-range theories and the application of the Canadian Home Care Nursing Practice Competencies. Learners will gain an understanding of ~~both~~ similarities and differences between nursing roles in hospitals and home care nursing practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~ **Year** 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3456A/B  
INDIGENOUS HEALTH: THE INFLUENCE OF POLICY AND PRACTICES**

**Course Description**

This course will provide an interprofessional learning environment with opportunities for students to critically examine and reflect on Indigenous health and health care practices. Health policy concepts will be embedded within historical, social, cultural and political realities.

**Prerequisite(s):** ~~Registration in the Faculty of Health Sciences or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.~~ **Registration in Year 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or the Compressed Time Frame BScN program.**

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3460A/B  
DEVELOPMENT OF NURSING PRACTICE WITHIN PATIENT CAREGIVER  
ENVIRONMENTS**

**Course Description**

This course ~~will~~ explore **s** the realities of providing care within the setting in which patients and their caregivers live and work. Learners will explore levels of risk and safety for patients, family members and the nurse through learning activities designed as composites of situational experiences commonly faced by home care nurses.

**Prerequisite(s):** Nursing 3450A/B, or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3470A/B  
MANAGEMENT OF CARE WITHIN HOME CARE PRACTICE**

**Course Description**

~~This course p~~**P**rovides simulated learning in the application of common nursing practice skills within a variety of home-based situations. Students ~~will~~ learn how to make autonomous decisions and how to adapt to unique situations ~~that normally are~~ not **typically** experienced in hospital-based practice. ~~Simulated practice p~~**P**rovides a “safe” learning environment to practice skills and learn from peers ~~s evaluation~~.

**Prerequisite(s):** Nursing 3450A/B and Nursing 3460A/B, or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3480A/B**

**PEDIATRICS: CARE OF CHILDREN AND THEIR FAMILIES**

**Course Description**

Pediatric nursing is dedicated to the health and care of young people, ranging from babies to teenagers. Children, as patients, have unique healthcare needs that require specialized knowledge and expertise in their growth, illness, and injury.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~Year 3 or 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or permission of the Arthur Labatt Family School of Nursing.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3630A/B**

**NURSING CARE FOR CLIENTS WITH ACUTE AND CHRONIC HEALTH CHALLENGES II**

**Course Description**

Changing health needs of clients across the life span requires critical thinking, application of individualized care, integration of health assessment, evidence-informed practices and diverse client support from an interprofessional team. Client safety and client-centred practices using nursing approach form the basis of this course.

**Antirequisite(s):** The former Nursing 3600W/X.

**Prerequisite(s):** Nursing 2630A/B; Registration in Year 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or the Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

~~Corequisite(s): Nursing 3900A/B or 3911A/B.~~

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3700Q/R/S/T**

**PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE I: CLIENTS WITH HEALTH CHALLENGES**

**Course Description**

Students will apply theory and integrate concepts related to health promotion and caring with clients experiencing health challenges. The focus of this course is the acquisition of nursing skills, utilizations of technological interventions, and application of evidence informed practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 4 laboratory hours. Pass/Fail. ~~All 2000-level courses in the program must be completed successfully before enrolling in 3000-level courses.~~  
Course Weight: 0.25

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3820A/B**

**MICROBIOLOGY AND IMMUNOLOGY FOR NURSING STUDENTS**

**Course Description**

The host immune response to microorganisms, the biology of microorganisms with disease-causing potential and clinical aspects of infectious diseases will be covered. The role and professional attitude of the nurse in prevention, detection and control of infections will be emphasized.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~Year 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or the Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.

**Extra Information:** 2 lecture hours. ~~Enrolment is limited to students Registration in year 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program and the or the Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.~~  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3900A/B**

**CLINICAL APPLICATION: NURSING CARE OF CLIENTS WITH HEALTH CHALLENGES**

**Course Description**

Students will apply and integrate theory while providing nursing care to clients experiencing episodic health challenges in a hospital setting.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

~~Corequisite(s): Nursing 3630A/B.~~

**Extra Information:** Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3910A/B**

**HEALTH PROMOTION & CARING: CLIENTS WITH HEALTH CHALLENGES I**

**Course Description**

This course provides students with opportunity to extend their understanding of health promotion to the care of adults and children experiencing acute and chronic health challenges.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~**Year** 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

**Corequisite(s):** Nursing 3911A/B.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3911A/B**

**CLINICAL APPLICATION: ENGAGING IN CRITICAL THINKING**

**Course Description**

Utilizing therapeutic communication and nursing knowledge and skills, students apply patient-centred practices for clients with acute health challenges in hospital settings. Through provision of care and health promotion activities students work with the interprofessional healthcare team to integrate applicable theoretical perspectives into nursing care for these clients.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in ~~y~~**Year 3** of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.

~~Corequisite(s): Nursing 3630A/B.~~

**Extra Information:** Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3920A/B**

**NURSING CARE OF CLIENTS WITH MENTAL HEALTH AND ILLNESS**

**Course Description**

Using a recovery model approach, students implement techniques to assist in the care and management of individuals living with mental illness. Students learn to navigate the complexities of intersectoral, intergovernmental structures and policies that limit access to mental health services using cultural safety knowledge and trauma and violence-informed approaches.

**Prerequisite(s):** ~~Nursing 3910A/B or Nursing 3630A/B with a grade of 65% or higher and a PASS in Nursing 3911A/B.~~ **Registration in Year 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.**

~~Corequisite(s): Nursing 3921A/B.~~

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours and Simulated Practice.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 3921A/B**  
**CLINICAL APPLICATION: MANAGING CLIENT CARE**

**Course Description**

In a variety of healthcare settings, students will apply and integrate theory related to the care of clients with a range of complex and concurrent health challenges. Additionally, students will gain insights into a variety of nursing roles and clients' and families' experiences and the nature of illness.

**Prerequisite(s):** ~~Nursing 3910A/B or Nursing 3630A/B with a grade of 65% or higher and A PASS in Nursing 3911A/B.~~ **Registration in Year 3 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program.**

~~Corequisite(s): Nursing 3920A/B.~~

**Extra Information:** Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4010A/B**  
**SPECIAL TOPICS IN NURSING**

**Course Description**

Selected topics in Nursing. Topic and course description available in the Undergraduate Programs Office.

**Antirequisite(s):** Antirequisites and/or additional prerequisites to be determined based on the topic offered.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.

Course Weight: 0.50



**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4140W/X  
SPECIAL TOPICS IN NURSING**

**Course Description**

Selected topics in Nursing. Topic and course description available in the Undergraduate Programs Office.

**Antirequisite(s):** Antirequisites and/or additional prerequisites to be determined based on the topic offered.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN Program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN Program.

Course Weight: 1.00

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4320A/B  
PROFESSIONAL ETHICAL AND LEGAL OBLIGATIONS: A CRITICAL  
APPRAISAL**

**Course Description**

Students critically examine the professional, ethical, and legal accountabilities in nursing to practice safely, competently, compassionately, and ethically. A deep exploration of professional practice standards, nursing legislation, codes of ethics and ethical theories will enable students to apply these core principles to their nursing practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in **Year 3 or 4** of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4400A/B  
ADVANCED CONCEPTS FOR PROFESSIONAL PRACTICE**

**Course Description**

This course will assist students to integrate multiple sources of knowledge gained in the program to engage in in-depth exploration of health/illness issues.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours. ~~All 3000-level courses in the program must be completed successfully before enrolling in 4000-level courses.~~

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4401W/X  
INTEGRATION OF ADVANCED AND COMPLEX CONCEPTS FOR NURSING PRACTICE**

**Course Description**

Students integrate multiple sources of knowledge and practice application to engage in management of complex health conditions. Recognition of urgent and rapidly changing client scenarios is practiced through use of critical thinking to implement interventions that improve client outcomes.

~~Antirequisite(s): Nursing 4400A/B.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 6 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 1.00

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4410A/B**

**CLINICAL APPLICATION: APPLYING ADVANCED CARE CONCEPTS**

**Course Description**

With a deeper understanding of the healthcare system and integrating principles of health equity, students will engage with clients and families experiencing health/illness challenges. Students will apply concepts learned through the program at an advanced level to work with clients and families as members within the interprofessional team.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

~~Corequisite: Nursing 4401W/X.~~

**Extra Information:** Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4440A/B**

**NURSES AS LEADERS IN SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION**

**Course Description**

Students analyze the role of nursing in shaping and influencing transformation across the healthcare system by focusing on contemporary issues in nursing, healthcare and health policy. The essential role of leadership in current and future nursing practice and healthcare change is explored.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4451W/X  
OPERATING ROOM INTEGRATIVE PRACTICUM**

**Course Description**

Students work to synthesize knowledge and experience gained throughout the program, specifically in the Operating Room. Students focus on gaining proficiency in evidence-informed practice, developing leadership skills and independence, and creating an individual philosophy of practice. Ultimately, students work towards the Association of Operating Room Nurses (AORN) credentialing.

**Prerequisite(s):** ~~Nursing 4410A/B~~; Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 2.00

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4461W/X  
INTEGRATIVE PRACTICUM**

**Course Description**

In this course students work with a preceptor to synthesize knowledge and experience gained throughout the program. Students will focus on gaining proficiency in evidence-informed practice, developing leadership skills and independence, and creating an individual philosophy of practice.

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program or **the** Compressed Time Frame BScN program.

**Extra Information:** Clinical Practice, Pass/Fail.  
Course Weight: 2.00

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**NURSING 4500W/X  
OPERATING ROOM NURSING**

**Course Description**

Explore the fundamental principles and practices of perioperative nursing. Students will learn to scrub, gown, glove, and mask using strict aseptic technique. Lab practice will include draping and skin preparation. Students will be introduced to the selection and use of surgical instruments, supplies, and equipment used in the surgical suite.

~~Antirequisite(s): Nursing 4140W/X from 2013-14 to 2015-16.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Registration in Year 4 of the Western-Fanshawe Collaborative BScN program **or the Compressed Time Frame Program.**

Course Weight: 1.00

# BRESCIA SCHOOL OF FOOD AND NUTRITIONAL SCIENCES

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN FOODS AND NUTRITION

The Honours Specialization in Foods and Nutrition prepares students for employment in food and nutrition careers, e.g., food service management and distribution, population and community health, and food industry. Graduates may also pursue advanced study in areas such as Public Health, Community Development, Education, Food Science/Safety, Hospitality Management and others. **Upon completion of this program, students have the opportunity to apply for the professional designation, P.H.Ec. (Professional Home Economist).**

Students are encouraged to seek academic advising **at within the** Brescia **University School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** early in the program.

## Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% with no grade below 60% in the following courses:

Chemistry 1301A/B and Chemistry 1302A/B  
Biology 1290B  
Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B  
Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B  
Physiology 1021

## Module

9.0 courses:

**3.5 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G, Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2230A/B, Foods and Nutrition 2449A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3390W/X.

**0.5 course:** Human Ecology 2222A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Chemistry 2003A/B (recommended) or Chemistry 2213A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Biochemistry 2288A (recommended) or Biochemistry 2280A.

**2.0 courses** from: Foods and Nutrition 3342A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3348A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3361F/G, Foods and Nutrition 3380A/B, or Foods and Nutrition 3400A/B, the former Foods and Nutrition 3320.

**2.0 courses** from: Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology at the 3000 or 4000-level.

## Related Information

Prior to May 1, 2024, this module was offered by Brescia University College.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **SPECIALIZATION IN FOODS AND NUTRITION**

The Specialization in Foods and Nutrition, within the Bachelor of Science Foods and Nutrition (BScFN) degree, ~~is offered by Brescia University College. Enrollment is through Brescia University College or the Faculty of Science. The Specialization~~ prepares students for possible employment in foods and nutrition careers, e.g. food service and distribution, population and community health and food industry. **Upon completion of this program, students have the opportunity to apply for the professional designation, P.H.Ec. (Professional Home Economist).**

Graduates also may pursue advanced study in areas such as Community Development, Education, Food Science/Safety, Food Service Management, and others.

Students are encouraged to seek academic advising **within at the** Brescia **School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~University College~~ early in the program, especially if they intend to combine the Specialization with a Major or Minor in a complementary field.

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first year requirements with no failures. Students must have a minimum of at least 60% in the following courses:

Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B  
Biology 1290B  
Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B  
Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B  
Physiology 1021

### **Module**

9.0 courses:

**3.0 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G, Foods and Nutrition 2230A/B, Foods and Nutrition 2449A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3342A/B.

**0.5 course:** Human Ecology 2222A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Chemistry 2003A/B (recommended), Chemistry 2213A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Biochemistry 2288A (recommended), Biochemistry 2280A.

**4.5 courses** from: Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology at the 3000 or 4000-level

### **Progression Requirements**

To remain in the Specialization in Foods and Nutrition, students must maintain a modular average of 60% or above.

### **Related Information**

Prior to May 1, 2024, this module was offered by Brescia University College.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **MINOR IN FOODS AND NUTRITION**

~~The Minor in Foods and Nutrition is offered by the School of Food and Nutritional Sciences at Brescia University College.~~ The Minor **in Foods and Nutrition** is designed specifically for students in undergraduate programs in Health Sciences, Kinesiology, Biology and Biomedical Sciences who may pursue the Minor concurrently with their degree program. All Foods and Nutrition courses count toward the student's undergraduate program.

### **Admission Requirements**

Registration in a module in Health Sciences, Kinesiology, Biology or Medical Sciences. Students must have an average of at least 70% in Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B and Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B or the former Foods and Nutrition 1021. Enrolment is limited and meeting the minimum requirements does not guarantee acceptance into the module.

### **Module**

4.0 courses:

**2.5 courses:** Biochemistry 2288A or Biochemistry 2280A, Foods and Nutrition 2130 or Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2230A/B, Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G.

**1.5 courses** from: Foods and Nutrition 3339A/B or Foods and Nutrition 3373A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3342A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3348A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3361F/G, Foods and Nutrition 3364A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3400A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3450F/G, Foods and Nutrition 3380A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4410A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4420A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4458A/B.

Students should be aware of prerequisites and are advised to meet with the Academic Counsellors for appropriate selection of courses.



## Related Information

Prior to May 1, 2024, this module was offered by Brescia University College.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN NUTRITION AND DIETETICS

The Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics is a professional program, within the Bachelor of Science Foods and Nutrition (BScFN) degree, ~~and is offered by Brescia University College. Enrollment is through Brescia University College or the Faculty of Science.~~ The program is accredited **by Accreditation Canada and is recognized by the Alliance of Canadian Dietetic Regulatory Bodies.** ~~by the Partnership for Dietetic Education and Practice (PDEP), and The program~~ prepares graduates for application to a dietetic practicum program that leads to registration as a Registered Dietitian (RD) by ~~the~~ professional regulating **bodies** ~~body~~, **including** the College of Dietitians of Ontario (CDO). This module supports the attainment of the Integrated Competencies for Dietetic Education (ICDEP) at the undergraduate level ~~as required by PDEP~~. Completion of the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics does not guarantee admission to a dietetic practicum program. Enrolment in this module is limited. Meeting the minimum requirements does not guarantee that students wishing to transfer into this module will be offered enrolment.

Graduates also may pursue post-graduate study in areas such as Nutritional Sciences, Health Administration, Food Science, Food Safety, or Public Health. Students are encouraged to seek academic advising ~~at~~ **within the Brescia University School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** early in the program, especially if they intend to combine the Honours Specialization with a Major or Minor in a complementary field. **Upon completion of this program, students have the opportunity to apply for the professional designation, P.H.Ec. (Professional Home Economist).**

### Admission Requirements

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 75% in the following courses with no grade below 60%:

Chemistry 1301A/B and Chemistry 1302A/B  
Biology 1290B  
Physiology 1021  
Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B  
Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B

## Module

11.5 courses:

**8.5 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G, Foods and Nutrition 2230A/B, Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2449A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3355A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3342A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3344A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3348A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3351A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3361F/G, Foods and Nutrition 3390W/X, Foods and Nutrition 4429A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4453A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4460A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4471A/B.

**0.5 course:** Human Ecology 2222A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Chemistry 2003A/B (recommended), Chemistry 2213A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Biochemistry 2288A (recommended), Biochemistry 2280A.

**1.5 courses** from: Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology at the 3000 or 4000-level.

## Progression

To remain in this module students must have a modular average of at least 75% with no modular course grade below 60%, at each adjudication point.

## Related Information

Prior to May 1, 2024, this module was offered by Brescia University College.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN NUTRITION AND DIETETICS/HBA

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the **Brescia** School of Food and Nutritional Sciences **in the Faculty of Health Sciences** ~~at Brescia University College (and the Faculty of Science).~~

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA) and an Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics (Bachelor of Science). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the **Brescia** School of Food and Nutritional Sciences ~~at Brescia University College (and the Faculty of Science)~~ and follow the normal curriculum for the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics module. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5. Admission requirements for the combined program are outlined below.

## Admission Requirements

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete a minimum of 10.0 courses including Business Administration 2257. In Year 1 they must complete the admission requirements as specified in the current Academic Calendar for entry into the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics module offered by the **Brescia** School of Food and Nutritional Sciences ~~at Brescia University College (and the Faculty of Science)~~.

In Year 2 students must enroll in the Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics and satisfy the minimum progression requirements for the second year of that Honours Specialization. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process. In addition, students must normally attain a minimum weighted average of 78% in the first year of the HBA.

Students apply for the combined degree program during the HBA 1 year, typically their third year of University. Applications to the combined program must be made in writing to the ~~Senior~~ Academic Advisor ~~at~~ **in the** Brescia **School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~University College~~ and to the HBA Program Office by the deadlines published by the Richard Ivey School of Business.

### Year 1

**5.0 courses** including 3.5 required courses:

**3.5 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B, Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B, Biology 1290B, Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B, Physiology 1021.  
**1.0 course** from: Humanities.

### Year 2

**5.5 courses:** Business Administration 2257, Chemistry 2003A/B (or Chemistry 2213A/B), Biochemistry 2288A (or Biochemistry 2280A), Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2230A/B, Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G, Foods and Nutrition 2449A/B, Human Ecology 2222A/B, 0.5 Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology course at the 3000 or 4000-level.

### Year 3 (HBA1)

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of

management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

All students will take: Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

No substitute for any of the above courses is permitted under any circumstances.

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Years 4 and 5 – except Business Administration 4569 which must be taken in Year 4)

### **5.5 courses:**

**0.5 course:** International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B.

**0.5 course:** Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

**0.5 course:** Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B.

**1.0 course:** Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569.

**3.0 courses:** Additional business electives [choice of 4000-level business courses]. These must be taken at the Ivey School of Business and cannot be substituted with other Western courses.

### **Years 4 and 5** (Nutrition and Dietetics)

**7.0 courses:** Foods and Nutrition 3342A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3344A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3348A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3351A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3355A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3361F/G, Foods and Nutrition 3390W/X, Foods and Nutrition 4429A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4453A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4460A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4471A/B, 1.0 Foods and Nutrition or Human Ecology course at the 3000 or 4000-level.

**0.5 course** from: Humanities or Social Science courses at the 2000 level or above.

### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

### **Progression Standards**

Students in the combined program must meet the progression standards of each Faculty or School. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000 level HBA courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 75% in their Honours Specialization module and meet all other progression requirements of the Honours Specialization module in which they are enrolled.

### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Nutrition and Dietetics program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

### **Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

~~At~~ **In the** Brescia **School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~University College~~, students will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in the usual way in Years 1 and 2, and at the end of Year 5 by considering all Foods and Nutrition courses that have been taken in Years 4 and 5. Students who take at least 2.0 Foods and Nutrition courses in Year 4 will be considered for the Dean's Honour List in that year on the basis of those courses.

### **Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BSc in Foods and Nutrition - Honours Specialization in Nutrition and Dietetics and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

### **Graduation with Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

### **International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined HBA/ Nutrition and Dietetics degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and the **Undergraduate Program Office in the Brescia School of Food and Nutritional Sciences** ~~Associate Registrar, Student Success at Brescia.~~

### **Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **MAJOR IN NUTRITION MANAGEMENT**

The Major in Nutrition Management contributes to a Bachelor of Science in Foods and Nutrition (BScFN) degree. The Major is comprised of required courses, including practicum courses, ~~offered by Brescia University College, and enrollment is through Brescia University College.~~

Upon completion of this Major, students have the opportunity to apply for the professional designation, P.H.Ec. (Professional Home Economist).

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first year requirements with no failures, including the following 4.5 courses: Foods and Nutrition 1070A/B, Foods and Nutrition 1241A/B, Chemistry 1301A/B, Chemistry 1302A/B, Biology 1290B, Physiology 1021, Economics 1021A/B, Economics 1022A/B.

### **Module**

7.0 courses:

Foods and Nutrition 2232, Foods and Nutrition 2266F/G, Foods and Nutrition 2449A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3340A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3348A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3364A/B, Foods and Nutrition 3400A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4330A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4410A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4429A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4449A/B, Foods and Nutrition 4458A/B, Human Ecology 2222A/B.

### **Progression**

Students must obtain an average of 60% in required courses.

### **Related Information**

Prior to May 1, 2024, this module was offered by Brescia University College.

# SCHOOL OF HEALTH STUDIES

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN HEALTH SCIENCES**

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have a minimum grade of 70% in each of Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, and Health Sciences 1300A/B; a minimum grade of 60% in each of ~~Biology 1201A and Biology 1202B (or~~ Biology 1001A and Biology 1002B) and a minimum cumulative average of 70%.

Students are advised to consult with an academic counsellor prior to selecting their first-year courses to ensure that the appropriate prerequisite courses have been selected to allow registration in courses at the 2000 level or above.

### **Module**

9.0 courses:

**3.5 courses** (to be taken in second year): Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800.

**0.5 course** (to be taken in third year): Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**0.5 course** in Health Research Methods from: Health Sciences 3811F/G, Health Sciences 3840A/B, Health Sciences 3910F/G, Health Sciences 4200F/G, Health Sciences 4205A/B, Health Sciences 4240F/G, Health Sciences 4250A/B.

**0.5 course** in Ecological Health from: Health Sciences 3010F/G, Health Sciences 3025A/B, Health Sciences 3071A/B, Health Sciences 3240A/B, Health Sciences 3250F/G, Health Sciences 3650F/G, Health Sciences 3704A/B, Health Sciences 4220F/G, Health Sciences 4505F/G, Health Sciences 4615F/G.

**3.0 courses** from: Rehabilitation Sciences, Health Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 2010-level or above (not otherwise selected).

**1.0 course** from: Health Sciences at the 4000-level.

**Note:** a maximum of 12.0 credits (at the 1000-level or higher) from amongst Health Sciences, Rehabilitation Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders courses, may be taken in any Specialization or Honours Specialization degree or module in the School of Health Studies.



**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN HEALTH SCIENCES WITH BIOLOGY**

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first-year requirements with no failures. Students must have an average of at least 70% with no grade less than 60% in 4.0 principal courses:

- Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, and Health Sciences 1300A/B (each with a minimum grade of 70%);
- Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B, or the former Biology 1222 or the former Biology 1223~~;
- Chemistry 1301A/B and Chemistry 1302A/B or the former Chemistry 1100A/B and the former Chemistry 1200B.

Students are advised to consult with an academic counsellor prior to selecting their first-year courses to ensure that the appropriate prerequisite courses have been selected to allow registration in courses at the 2000-level or above.

### **Module**

9.0 courses:

**3.5 courses** (to be taken in second year): Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800.

**0.5 course** (to be taken in third year): Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Health Sciences at the 3000-level or above.

**0.5 course** from: Health Sciences at the 4000-level.

**0.5 course:** Biochemistry 2280A.

**2.0 courses** from: Biology 2581A/B, Biology 2382A/B, Biology 2483A/B, Biology 2471A/B, Biology 2485A/B, Biology 2601A/B.

**0.5 course:** Chemistry 2213A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Biology 3316A/B, Biology 3592A/B, Biology 3601A/B, the former Biology 3332A/B.

**0.5 course** in Biology at the 2200-level or above, which may include courses listed above not already taken.

**Note:** a maximum of 12.0 credits (at the 1000-level or higher) from amongst Health Sciences, Rehabilitation Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders courses, may be taken in any Specialization or Honours Specialization degree or module in the School of Health Studies.



**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN HEALTH SCIENCES/HBA**

The combined program takes five academic years to complete. Students are registered in the combined program for Years Four and Five. The specifics may change as courses change in each faculty. It is assumed that students do not take more than two years of Health Sciences course work prior to beginning HBA1.

#### **Admission Requirements**

Students apply for the combined program during their HBA1 year. To be eligible for admission for the combined program, students must complete all requirements for the first two years of the Honours Specialization in Health Sciences, obtain a minimum two year average of 80% and achieve a minimum 70% in Business Administration 2257. Demonstrated participation in extra curricular and/or community activities, leadership and work experience are also required. In addition, students must attain a weighted rounded average of 78% in the HBA1 year. Admission to the combined program is competitive and limited. Upon completion of the combined program students will receive two degrees: a BHSc with an Honours Specialization in Health Sciences and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program.

#### **Module**

##### **First Year**

All students, including those admitted via the AEO route, must complete the following first-year requirements:

Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, Health Sciences 1300A/B; ~~Biology 1201A and Biology 1202B~~ or Biology 1001A and Biology 1002B.

##### **Second Year**

All students, including those admitted via the AEO route, must complete the following second-year requirements:

4.5 courses: Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800; Business Administration 2257.

### **Year 3 (HBA1)**

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

**All students will take:** Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

No substitute for any of the above courses is permitted under any circumstances.

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5, except Business Administration 4569, which must be taken in Year 4)

#### **2.5 courses:**

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

#### **2.5 additional business elective courses.**

### **Years 4 and 5 (Health Science)**

**0.5 course:** Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**0.5 course** in Health Research Methods from: Health Sciences 3811F/G, Health Sciences 3840A/B, Health Sciences 3910F/G, Health Sciences 4200F/G, Health Sciences 4205A/B, Health Sciences 4240F/G, Health Sciences 4250A/B.

**0.5 course** in Ecological Health from: Health Sciences 3010F/G, Health Sciences 3025A/B, Health Sciences 3071A/B, Health Sciences 3240A/B, Health Sciences 3250F/G, Health Sciences 3650F/G, Health Sciences 3704A/B, Health Sciences 4220F/G, Health Sciences 4505F/G, Health Sciences 4615F/G.

**3.0 courses** from: Rehabilitation Sciences, Health Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 2010-level or above (not otherwise selected).

**1.0 course** from: Health Sciences at the 4000-level.

**Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

**Progression Standards**

Students in this combined program must meet the following progression standards:

Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year Three) must attain a minimum weighted rounded average of 78%.

In Years Four and Five, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA courses and a minimum weighted average of 75% in their Health Sciences courses.

**Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Health Sciences program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either or both of the individual programs, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

**Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined degree program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purpose of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. The Dean's Honour List for HBA2 typically includes the top 25% of all of HBA2 and is determined by vote of the teaching faculty. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Faculty of Health Sciences, students will be adjudicated for the Dean's Honour List based on all courses taken in the academic year (i.e., September – April) provided the student is registered in a minimum of five courses. In addition, an average of 80% must be achieved on all courses taken toward the BHSc degree with no failed courses.

### **Graduation With Distinction**

A student who receives an overall average of 80% and no grade lower than 70% on the entire program with no failed courses will receive the designation graduation "With Distinction".

### **Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined Honours Specialization in Health Sciences/HBA degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Undergraduate Program Office in the School of Health Studies.

### **Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs.

Contact the Office of the Registrar, Western Student Services building, RM 1120, 519-661-2100 or at [www.registrar.uwo.ca](http://www.registrar.uwo.ca) for details.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **SPECIALIZATION IN HEALTH SCIENCES**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first-year requirements. Students must have a minimum cumulative average of 65%, with a minimum grade of 60% in each of: Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B and Health Sciences 1300A/B; Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B, or the former Biology 1222 or the former Biology 1223~~; 0.5 additional course.

#### **Module**

9.0 courses:

**3.5 courses** (to be taken in second year): Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800.

**0.5 course** (to be taken in third year): Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**0.5 course** in Health Research Methods from: Health Sciences 3811F/G, Health Sciences 3840A/B, Health Sciences 3910F/G, Health Sciences 4200F/G, Health Sciences 4205A/B, Health Sciences 4240F/G, Health Sciences 4250A/B.

**0.5 course** in Ecological Health from: Health Sciences 3010F/G, Health Sciences 3025A/B, Health Sciences 3071A/B, Health Sciences 3240A/B, Health Sciences 3250F/G, Health Sciences 3650F/G, Health Sciences 3704A/B, Health Sciences 4220F/G, Health Sciences 4505F/G, Health Sciences 4615F/G.

**4.0 courses** from: Rehabilitation Sciences, Health Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 2010-level or above (not otherwise selected).

**Note:** a maximum of 12.0 credits (at the 1000-level or higher) from amongst Health Sciences, Rehabilitation Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders courses, may be taken in any Specialization or Honours Specialization degree or module in the School of Health Studies.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **MAJOR IN HEALTH SCIENCES**

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first-year requirements. Students must have a minimum cumulative average of 65%, with a minimum grade of 60% in each of: Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B and Health Sciences 1300A/B; Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B, or the former Biology 1222 or the former Biology 1223~~; 0.5 additional course.

### **Module**

6.0 courses:

**3.5 courses** (to be taken in second year): Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800.

**0.5 course** (to be taken in third year): Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**2.0 courses** from: Health Sciences at the 2010-level or above.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN REHABILITATION SCIENCES**

### **Admission Requirements**

Registration in the School of Health Studies. Completion of year one course requirements with no grade less than 60%. Students must have a minimum grade of 70% in each of Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, and Health Sciences 1300A/B, minimum grade of 60% in each of ~~Biology 1201A and Biology 1202B (or Biology 1001A and Biology 1002B)~~, and a minimum cumulative average of 70%.

Enrolment is limited. Meeting the minimum requirement does not guarantee admission.

## **Module**

9.0 courses:

**3.5 courses** (to be taken in second year): Health Sciences 2250A/B, Health Sciences 2400A/B, Health Sciences 2610F/G, Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Health Sciences 2800.

**0.5 course** (to be taken in third year): Health Sciences 3801A/B.

**1.0 course:** Rehabilitation Sciences 3060A/B, Rehabilitation Sciences 3061A/B (minimum grade of 70%).

**4.0 courses** from: Health Sciences 3050A/B, Health Sciences 3300A/B, Health Sciences 4074A/B, Physiology 2130, Rehabilitation Sciences or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 3000-level or above (not otherwise selected).

## **Notes:**

- A maximum of 1.0 FCE may be used as a double credit towards a degree with combined modules (e.g. specialization and minor, double major, major and minor).
- A maximum of 12.0 credits (at the 1000-level or higher) from amongst Health Sciences, Rehabilitation Sciences, or Communication Sciences and Disorders courses, may be taken in any Specialization or Honours Specialization degree or module in the School of Health Studies.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **MAJOR IN REHABILITATION SCIENCES**

### **Admission Requirements**

#### **For Students in the School of Health Studies**

Registration in the School of Health Studies. Students must have a minimum cumulative average of 65%, with a minimum grade of 60% in each of: Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, Health Sciences 1300A/B, and Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~Biology 1202B~~. Enrolment is limited. Meeting the minimum requirement does not guarantee admission.

#### **For Students in the School of Kinesiology**

Registration in the School of Kinesiology. Completion of year one course requirements with no grade less than 60%. Students must have an average of at least 70% in the 5.0 course load and 70% in each of the principal courses including Kinesiology 1060A/B, Kinesiology 1070A/B or the former 1088A/B, Kinesiology 1080A/B, and Physiology 1021 or Physiology 2130. Enrolment is limited. Meeting the minimum requirement does not guarantee admission.

## Module

6.0 courses:

**0.5 course** from: Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Kinesiology 3347A/B, Psychology 2410A/B. Note: Students enrolled in a double major in Health Studies and Rehabilitation Sciences must replace this requirement with 0.5 Rehabilitation Sciences course at the 3000-level or above (not previously selected).

**0.5 course** from: Health Sciences 2801A/B, Kinesiology 2032A/B.

**1.0 course:** Rehabilitation Sciences 3060A/B, Rehabilitation Sciences 3061A/B.

**4.0 courses** from: Health Sciences 3050A/B, Health Sciences 3300A/B, Health Sciences 4074A/B, Kinesiology 3222A/B, Kinesiology 3336A/B, Kinesiology 3457A/B, Kinesiology 3474A/B, Kinesiology 3480A/B, Kinesiology 3550A/B, Kinesiology 4437A/B, Kinesiology 4457A/B, Kinesiology 4474A/B, Kinesiology 4560A/B, the former Kinesiology 4450A/B, Rehabilitation Sciences or Communication Sciences and Disorders at the 3000-level or above (not otherwise selected).

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 FCE may be used as a double credit towards a degree with combined modules (e.g. specialization and minor, double major, major and minor).

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### MINOR IN REHABILITATION SCIENCES

#### Admission Requirements

##### For Students in the School of Health Studies

Registration in the School of Health Studies. Completion of year one course requirements with no grade less than 60%. Students must have an average of at least 70% in the 5.0 course load and 70% in each of the principal courses including: Health Sciences 1001A/B, Health Sciences 1002A/B, Health Sciences 1111A/B, and Health Sciences 1300A/B, and Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B~~. Enrolment is limited. Meeting the minimum requirement does not guarantee admission.

##### For Students in the School of Kinesiology

Registration in the School of Kinesiology. Completion of year one course requirements with no grade less than 60%. Students must have an average of at least 70% in the 5.0 course load and 70% in each of the principal courses including Kinesiology 1060A/B, Kinesiology 1070A/B or the former Kinesiology 1088A/B, and Kinesiology 1080A/B and Physiology 1021/Physiology 2130.

Enrolment is limited. Meeting the minimum requirement does not guarantee admission.

### **Module**

4.0 courses:

**0.5 course** from: Health Sciences 2700A/B, Health Sciences 2711A/B, Kinesiology 3347A/B, Psychology 2410A/B. Note: Students enrolled in any other module within the School of Health Studies must replace this requirement with 0.5 Rehabilitation Sciences course at the 3000-level or above (not previously selected).

**1.0 course:** Rehabilitation Sciences 3060A/B, Rehabilitation Sciences 3061A/B.

**2.5 courses** from: Health Sciences 3050A/B, Health Sciences 3300A/B, Health Sciences 4074A/B, Kinesiology 3222A/B, Kinesiology 3336A/B, Kinesiology 3457A/B, Kinesiology 3474A/B, Kinesiology 3480A/B, Kinesiology 3550A/B, Kinesiology 4437A/B, Kinesiology 4457A/B, Kinesiology 4474A/B, Kinesiology 4560A/B, the former Kinesiology 4450A/B, Rehabilitation Sciences or Communication Sciences and Disorders courses at the 3000-level or above (not otherwise selected).

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 FCE may be used as a double credit towards a degree with combined modules (e.g. specialization and minor, double major, major and minor).



# SCHULICH SCHOOL OF MEDICINE & DENTISTRY

## DEPARTMENT OF MICROBIOLOGY AND IMMUNOLOGY

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### **MICROBIOLOGY AND IMMUNOLOGY 2500A/B BIOLOGY OF INFECTION AND IMMUNITY**

#### **Course Description**

The biology of the human immune system and microbial pathogens including viruses, bacteria, parasites and fungi. Host-pathogen relationships and mechanisms used by microbes to cause disease will be emphasized.

**Prerequisite(s):** ~~Either~~ Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~; and ~~one of~~ **either** Biology 1002B, ~~Biology 1202B~~, **or** Integrated Science 1001X.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

## DEPARTMENT OF NEUROSCIENCE

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### NEUROSCIENCE 2000 INTRODUCTION TO NEUROSCIENCE

#### Course Description

A comprehensive introduction to the neurosciences. Topics include molecular properties of neurons; neural plasticity; development of the brain and nervous system; sensory, motor and integrative systems; neural mechanisms of behaviour and cognition, including memory, language, and consciousness. Molecular and genetic techniques, electrophysiological recording, and brain imaging methods will be examined.

**Antirequisite(s):** Psychology 2220A/B and Psychology 2221A/B, if taken in 2013/14 or onward.

**Prerequisite(s):** Psychology 1002A/B and Psychology 1003A/B with a minimum mark of 60%, or Psychology 1000 with a minimum mark of 60%; ~~either~~ Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A with a minimum mark of 60%~~; and ~~either~~ Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B~~ with a minimum mark of 60% **in each**.

**Extra Information:** 2 lecture hours, 2 tutorial/laboratory hours.  
Course Weight: 1.00

## DEPARTMENT OF PHYSIOLOGY AND PHARMACOLOGY

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### PHYSIOLOGY 3120 HUMAN PHYSIOLOGY

#### Course Description

A survey of the physiology of various systems (e.g. neural, endocrine, renal, cardiovascular, digestive, respiratory, etc.) of the human.

**Prerequisite(s):** one of Physics 1201A/B, Physics 1501A/B, the former Physics 1028A/B, the former Physics 1301A/B; 1.0 course from: Calculus 1000A/B or Calculus 1500A/B, Calculus 1301A/B or Calculus 1501A/B, Data Science 1000A/B, Mathematics 1600A/B, Mathematics 1225A/B, Mathematics 1228A/B, Mathematics 1229A/B, Statistical Sciences 1024A/B, Applied Mathematics 1201A/B, Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1412A/B, Numerical and Mathematical Methods 1414A/B, the former Applied Mathematics 1412A/B, ~~the former Applied Mathematics 1413,~~ the former Applied Mathematics 1414A/B; ~~one of~~ Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A~~ and ~~one of~~ Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B~~; or permission of the department. Integrated Science 1001X can be used as a prerequisite in place of Biology 1002B and Calculus 1301A/B. It is strongly recommended that Biochemistry 2280A and Biology 2382A/B be taken prior to Physiology 3120. Open only to students who are registered in Years 3 or 4.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 1.00

## DEPARTMENT OF PATHOLOGY AND LABORATORY MEDICINE

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### **ONE HEALTH 3300A/B FOUNDATIONS IN ONE HEALTH**

#### **Course Description**

The history, core concepts and foundational approaches fundamental to this multi-sectoral and collaborative discipline are presented in lectures and in-depth case studies of the three pillars of One Health (human health, animal health and environmental health).

**Prerequisite(s):** Biology 1001A ~~or Biology 1201A;~~ **and** Biology 1002B ~~or Biology 1202B;~~ either Biology 2244A/B or Statistical Sciences 2244A/B; and registration in third or fourth year of a BSc or BSc degree.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture/seminar hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

## DON WRIGHT FACULTY OF MUSIC

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

### **MUSIC 1954A/B/Y PERCUSSION ENSEMBLE**

#### **Course Description**

The rehearsal and performance of a broad range of percussion ensemble repertoire including standard, world, jazz and contemporary styles. Further technical, musical and organization skills building on applied study are explored.

**Corequisite(s):** Open only to students also enrolled in Studio Percussion Music 1920, ~~Music 2920, Music 3920, Music 4920, Music 2921, Music 3921, Music 4921, Music 3922, Music 4922, Music 4923,~~ **or** Music 1925, ~~Music 2925, Music 3925, Music 4925, Music 3924Y, Music 4924Y, Music 3929 or Music 4929.~~

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. Open to Music Students only.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

### **MUSIC 2954A/B/Y PERCUSSION ENSEMBLE**

#### **Course Description**

The rehearsal and performance of a broad range of percussion ensemble repertoire including standard, world, jazz and contemporary styles. Further technical, musical and organization skills building on applied study are explored.

**Corequisite(s):** Open only to students also enrolled in Studio Percussion ~~Music 1920,~~ Music 2920, ~~Music 3920, Music 4920,~~ Music 2921, ~~Music 3921, Music 4921,~~ **Music 2922,** ~~Music 3922, Music 4922, Music 4923, Music 1925,~~ **or** Music 2925, ~~Music 3925, Music 4925, Music 3924Y, Music 4924Y, Music 3929 or Music 4929.~~

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. Open to Music Students only.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**MUSIC 3954A/B/Y  
PERCUSSION ENSEMBLE**

**Course Description**

The rehearsal and performance of a broad range of percussion ensemble repertoire including standard, world, jazz and contemporary styles. Further technical, musical and organization skills building on applied study are explored.

**Corequisite(s):** Open only to students also enrolled in Studio Percussion ~~Music 1920, Music 2920, Music 3920, Music 4920, Music 2921, Music 3921, Music 4921, Music 3922, Music 4922, Music 4923, Music 1925, Music 2925, Music 3925, Music 4925, Music 3924Y, Music 4924Y,~~ **or** Music 3929 ~~or Music 4929.~~

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. Open to Music Students only.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**MUSIC 4954A/B/Y  
PERCUSSION ENSEMBLE**

**Course Description**

The rehearsal and performance of a broad range of percussion ensemble repertoire including standard, world, jazz and contemporary styles. Further technical, musical and organization skills building on applied study are explored.

**Corequisite(s):** Open only to students also enrolled in Studio Percussion ~~Music 1920, Music 2920, Music 3920, Music 4920, Music 2921, Music 3921, Music 4921, Music 3922, Music 4922, Music 4923, Music 1925, Music 2925, Music 3925, Music 4925, Music 3924Y, Music 4924Y, Music 3929~~ **or** Music 4929.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. Open to Music Students only.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

**BACHELOR OF MUSIC**

**Admission Requirements**

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

**Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.  
Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.  
0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.  
0.5 course from any Faculty.  
0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

**Module/Program Information**

**Second Year**

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.  
Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.  
1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.  
1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

### Third Year

Music 3924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y.

### Fourth Year

Music 4924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.0 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 4924Y.

**Note:** In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses may be numbered 1000 to 1999. **A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

### Progression Requirements

A student who at the end of an academic year has achieved a weighted average of at least 60% and a passing grade in each course of his or her approved program may progress to the next year.

The Dean may impose special conditions on future registration, or require a student to withdraw from the Faculty of Music, if that student:

1. fails to achieve the required average, or
2. fails one or more courses, or
3. fails to complete all first year requirements by the end of the second year of full-time registration.



A student required to withdraw from the Bachelor of Music program shall be required to withdraw from the University unless admitted to the Bachelor of Arts (Music) program or to another Faculty.

### **Graduation Requirements**

Satisfactory completion of the required courses of the program, with an overall weighted average of at least 60%.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

#### **Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

## Module/Program Information

### Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

### Third Year

Music 3924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913) or 0.5 music elective.

1.5 courses at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from any Faculty.

1.0 course from the Faculty other than Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y.

### Fourth Year

Music 4924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

1.0 course at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course from a Faculty other than Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 4924Y.

**Note:** In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses may be numbered 1000 to 1999. **A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## **Progression and Graduation Requirements**

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN COMPOSITION**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

#### **Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

#### **Admission Requirements After Year I Music**

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in the non-Music courses, and a mark of at least 70% in Music 1641U and Music 1651A/B.

#### **Admission Requirements After Year II Music**

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less

than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 1651A/B, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, and Music 2629.

## **Module/Program Information**

### **Second Year**

Music 2629, Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913. 1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Third Year**

Music 3629, Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B.

Music 3920 and Ensemble\* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), or 1.0 music elective.

**1.0 courses** from Music 2695A/B, Music 3610A/B, Music 3611A/B, Music 3620A/B, Music 3621A/B, Music 3630A/B, Music 3641A/B/Y, Music 3696A/B/Y.

**0.5 course** or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

**0.5 course** or equivalent from any Faculty.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3920.

### **Fourth Year**

Music 4629.

Music 4920 and Ensemble\* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 1.0 music elective.

**1.0 courses** from: Music 2695A/B, Music 3610A/B, Music 3611A/B, Music 3620A/B, Music 3621A/B, Music 3630A/B, Music 3641A/B/Y, Music 3696A/B/Y.

**1.0 course** or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

**1.0 course** or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

\* The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 4920.

**Note: A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## **Progression**

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN MUSIC EDUCATION**

Students who intend to qualify to teach with Ontario teaching certification at the Honours Specialist level should enroll in the Honours in Music Education program. From a wide range of electives students may choose a comprehensive program or may specialize in elementary or secondary school vocal or instrumental music.

## **Admission Requirements**

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

## **Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B\*.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

\*It is recommended that students who intend to register in the Bachelor of Music with Honours in Music Education program in year 2 are advised to elect Music 1802A/B as their 0.5 course from the Faculty of Music, and elect as both their 0.5 course from any Faculty and 0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music, courses in the same non -Music subject area that they intend to use as their second teachable subject.

### **Admission Requirements After Year I Music**

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and a mark of at least 70% in Music 1802A/B.

### **Admission Requirements After Year II Music**

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 1802A/B and Music 2831A/B and Music 2832A/B or 1.0 course chosen from Music 2861A/B, Music 2871A/B, Music 2881A/B, Music 2873Q/R/S/T and Music 2880Q/R/S/T, or the former Music 2863Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2865Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2866Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2875Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2876Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2885Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2885Q/R/S/T.

## **Module/Program Information**

### **Second Year**

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Music 2831A/B and Music 2832A/B, or 1.0 course chosen from Music 2861A/B, Music 2871A/B, Music 2881A/B, Music 2873Q/R/S/T and Music 2880Q/R/S/T, or the former Music 2863Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2865Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2866Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2875Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2876Q/R/S/T, the former Music

2885Q/R/S/T, the former Music 2885Q/R/S/T.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

### Third Year

Music 3810A/B, Music 3812A/B/Y, Music 3832A/B/Y or Music 3841A/B, Music 3920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music\*.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

### Fourth Year

Music 4811A/B, Music 4858A/B, Music 4920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

0.5 course from Music 4840A/B or a Music Education elective.

1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music\*.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

\* At least 1.0 course from the Faculty of Music electives in Years 3 and 4 must be from the Department of Music Education.

**Note: A maximum of 1.0 course Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

Guaranteed Admission of Music Education Graduates to Western's Faculty of Education.

### Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-

Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN MUSIC RESEARCH**

### **Admission Requirements**

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

### **Common First Year**

Music 0914(if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Admission Requirements after Year I Music**

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in the non-Music courses, and a mark of at least 70% in Music 1651A/B and Music 1750F/G.

### **Admission Requirements after Year II Music**

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a



mark of at least 70% in Music 1651A/B, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 2750F/G.

## **Module/Program Information**

### **Second Year**

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Third Year**

Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B.

Music 3920 and Ensemble\* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913), or 1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.5 courses from: Music 3600–3625, Music 3700–3799.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Fourth Year**

Music 4671A/B/Y.

Music 4920 and Ensemble\* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

2.0 courses from: Music 3600–3625, Music 4630–4699, Music 3700–3799, Music 4730–4799.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

1.0 course or equivalent from a Faculty other than Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3920 or Music 4920.

**Note: A maximum of 1.0 course Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## **Progression**

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN PERFORMANCE (ORCHESTRAL INSTRUMENT)**

#### **Admission Requirements**

For admission to this program, applicants must demonstrate at least a Level 10 Royal Conservatory of Music performance standard, or equivalent, in the orchestral instrument, as well as evidence of exceptional performing ability.

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

#### **Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Admission Requirements After Year I Music**

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and the recommendation of the department on the basis of a special audition.

### **Admission Requirements After Year II Music**

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 2920 and permission of the Department on the basis of a special audition.

### **Module/Program Information**

#### **Second Year**

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2921.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

2.0 courses or equivalent, at least 1.0 of which must be from a Faculty other than Music.

#### **Third Year**

Music 3921, Music 3930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

0.5 music history or theory course in 20th-century music, normally selected from Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B, Music 3705A/B, Music 3706A/B, Music 3752A/B, Music 3754A/B, Music 3760A/B, or other courses which in a given year deal substantially with art music since 1900, from an historical or theoretic-analytical perspective, with department permission.

1.5 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

## Fourth Year

Music 4921, Music 4930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

2.0 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

**Notes:** Music electives must include 1.0 course or equivalent from Music 2973A, Music 2974B, Music 3976A/B/Y and Music 4976A/B/Y, and must also include Music 2975Y and Music 3975Y, or suitable alternatives approved by the chair of the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Electives in third or fourth year must include 1.0 Music course from a department other than the Department of Music Performance Studies.

**A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## Progression

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN PERFORMANCE (PIANO)**

### **Admission Requirements**

For admission to this program, applicants must demonstrate at least a Level 10 Royal Conservatory of Music performance standard, or equivalent, in piano, as well as evidence of exceptional performing ability.

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

### **Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Admission Requirements After Year I Music**

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and the recommendation of the department on the basis of a special audition.

### **Admission Requirements After Year II Music**

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a

mark of at least 70% in Music 2920 and permission of the Department on the basis of a special audition.

## **Module/Program Information**

### **Second Year**

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2921.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

2.0 courses or equivalent, at least 1.0 of which must be from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Third Year**

Music 3921, Music 3930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

0.5 music history or theory course in 20th-century music, normally selected from Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B, Music 3705A/B, Music 3706A/B, Music 3752A/B, Music 3754A/B, Music 3760A/B, or other courses which in a given year deal substantially with art music since 1900, from an historical or theoretic-analytical perspective, with department permission.

1.5 courses from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

### **Fourth Year**

Music 4921, Music 4930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

2.0 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

**Notes:** Music Electives must include Music 3958, Music 4959Y and Music 4976A/B/Y. Ensemble must include at least one of: Music 1906, Music 2906, Music 3906 or Music 4906.

Electives in third or fourth year must include 1.0 Music course from a department other than the Department of Music Performance Studies.

**A maximum of 1.0 course Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

### **Progression**

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **BACHELOR OF MUSIC WITH HONOURS IN PERFORMANCE (VOICE)**

#### **Admission Requirements**

For admission to this program, applicants must demonstrate at least a Level 10 Royal Conservatory of Music performance standard, or equivalent, in voice, as well as evidence of exceptional performing ability.

Six approved Grade 12U and/or M level courses including English (ENG4U) and recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an audition and interview.

Students recommended for admission to the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs take a Common First Year as described below.

Students not recommended for admission to the Common First Year of the Bachelor of Music (BMus) programs are automatically considered for admission to the first year of the BA (Music) program.

Proficiency equivalent to the Royal Conservatory of Music Level 6 Piano and Level 6 Music Theory are strongly recommended before entrance. Royal Conservatory of Music Certificates are not required. See Music 0914 under

COURSES for information regarding the piano proficiency requirement.

### **Common First Year**

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

### **Admission Requirements After Year I Music**

Completion of Common First Year with a weighted average of at least 70%, no mark less than 60% in Music courses, a passing grade in non-Music courses, and the recommendation of the department on the basis of a special audition.

### **Admission Requirements After Year II Music**

Completion of all courses specified for Years I and II of the program; a cumulative weighted average of at least 70% in Music courses; no mark less than 60% in senior Music courses, a passing grade in each non-Music course; a mark of at least 70% in Music 2920 and permission of the Department on the basis of a special audition.

### **Module/Program Information**

#### **Second Year**

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2921.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

2.0 courses, at least 1.0 of which must be from a Faculty other than Music.

#### **Third Year**

Music 3921, Music 3930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913.

0.5 music history or theory course in 20th-century music, normally selected from Music 3649A/B, Music 3650A/B, Music 3705A/B, Music 3706A/B, Music 3752A/B, Music 3754A/B, Music 3760A/B, or other



courses which in a given year deal substantially with art music since 1900, from an historical or theoretic-analytical perspective, with department permission.

1.5 courses or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

## **Fourth Year**

Music 4921, Music 4930A/B/Y and 0.5 course from the Department of Music Performance Studies, Music 4945.

Ensemble: One, or more, of Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913.

1.0 course or equivalent from the Faculty of Music.

1.0 course or equivalent from any Faculty.

**Notes:** Electives must include Music 2942A/B/Y and Music 3942A/B/Y. Electives must also include Music 2970 or a suitable alternative approved by the Chair of Music Performance Studies.

Electives in third or fourth year must include 1.0 Music course from a department other than the Department of Music Performance Studies.

**A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## **Progression**

If a student fails to meet admission requirements, permission to proceed in an Honours Music program may be granted by the Dean on the recommendation of the Department concerned; special conditions on future registration may be imposed.

The basic progression and graduation requirement is completion of the previous year's approved program of study, with a weighted average of at least 70% and no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

The continued registration of a student ineligible to progress to the subsequent year of an Honours program will be restricted to courses required to complete the general Bachelor of Music or the three-year BA (Music) degree.

## **Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **BACHELOR OF MUSIC (HONOURS)/HBA**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music (Honours) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

### **Admission Requirements**

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Music (Honours). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Music (Honours), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

### **Module/Program Information**

#### **Year 1**

Ensemble: One, or more, of: Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.  
3.5 courses: Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.  
0.5 course from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

0.5 course from any Faculty.

0.5 course from a Faculty other than Music.

A weighted average of at least 70% and no mark less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in the non-Music course.

## Year 2

**Ensemble:** One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

**3.0 courses:** Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

**1.0 course** from the Faculty of Music.

**1.0 course:** Business Administration 2257.

## Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

**All students will take:** Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

## Years 4 and 5 (5.0 Music courses and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

Music (5.0 Music courses must be taken over Years 4 or 5).

From Year 3 of the BMus (Honours) program:

**0.5 course:** Music 3924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 3901, Music 3902, Music 3903, Music 3904, Music 3905, Music 3906, Music 3910, Music 3911, Music 3912, Music 3913) or 0.5 music elective.

**1.5 courses** at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

\*The ensemble requirement becomes an optional elective for those students not registered in Music 3924Y and Music 4924Y.

From Year 4 of the BMus (Honours) Program:

**0.5 course:** Music 4924Y and Ensemble\* (Music 4901, Music 4902, Music 4903, Music 4904, Music 4905, Music 4906, Music 4910, Music 4911, Music 4912, Music 4913), or 0.5 music elective.

**1.0 course** at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

**1.5 courses** from the Faculty of Music.

**Note:** In the Bachelor of Music (Honours) program, no more than 8.0 courses may be numbered 1000 to 1999. **A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

## **HBA2**

Years 4 and 5 (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

### **2.5 courses:**

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **3.5 additional business electives.**

## **Progression**

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Music (Honours) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in Music courses, and a passing grade in each non-Music course.

**Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Music (Honours) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

**Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

**Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a Bachelor of Music (Honours) and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

**Graduation With Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

**International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

**Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

**WESTERN/FANSHAWE COLLABORATIVE DEGREE/DIPLOMA IN MUSIC  
RECORDING ARTS (MRA)**

The MRA program is a five-year, integrated program. Successful graduates of the program will receive a Bachelor of Music degree from The University of Western Ontario and a two-year Ontario College Diploma in Music Industry Arts (MIA) from Fanshawe College.

**Admission Requirements**

Applicants must meet the admission requirements for the Bachelor of Music (BMus) program, which include an audition and an interview.

Up to ten students will be admitted to the collaborative Music Recording Arts (MRA) program each year. Students will apply for admission at the end of the second year of the general BMus program. Students will be evaluated for admission based on their academic standing by a joint committee from the two institutions. Attainment of minimum admission requirements does not guarantee admission to the MRA program. Entry to the collaborative program is competitive. The joint admissions committee will review requests for Advanced Standing on a case-by-case basis.

Those students not offered a place in the MRA collaborative program may continue in the general BMus program, provided they meet academic progression requirements, or may apply to the Fanshawe College diploma program in Music Industry Arts.

**Program Description**

Year 1: 5.0 courses + Ensemble, Western

Year 2: 5.0 courses + Ensemble, Western

Year 3: MIA – Level 1, Fanshawe  
MIA - Level 2, Fanshawe  
1.5 courses, Western

Year 4: 5.5 courses, Western

Year 5: MIA – Level 3, Fanshawe  
MIA – Level 4, Fanshawe  
1.0 course, Western

## Bachelor of Music

### First Year

Music 0914 (if required), Music 1639U, Music 1641U, Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, Music 1920.

**Ensemble:** One, or more, of Music 1901, Music 1902, Music 1903, Music 1904, Music 1905, Music 1906, Music 1910, Music 1911, Music 1912, Music 1913.

**0.5 course** from: Music 1629A/B, Music 1730A/B, Music 1802A/B.

**0.5 course** from an Faculty.

**0.5 course** from a Faculty other than Music.

### Second Year

Music 2639U, Music 2641U, Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G, Music 2920.

**Ensemble:** One or more of Music 2901, Music 2902, Music 2903, Music 2904, Music 2905, Music 2906, Music 2910, Music 2911, Music 2912, Music 2913.

**1.0 course** from the Faculty of Music.

**1.0 course** from a Faculty other than Music.

### Third Year

**1.5 courses** from any Faculty.

### Fourth Year

**2.5 courses** at the 2000 level or above from the Faculty of Music.

**1.5 courses** from the Faculty of Music.

**1.5 courses** from a Faculty other than Music.

### Fifth Year

**1.0 course** from any Faculty.

**Note:** In the Bachelor of Music program, no more than 8.0 courses may be numbered 1000-1999. **A maximum of 1.0 course from Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and Music 2801A/B may be counted toward the program.**

### **Progression Requirements**

Beginning in Year 3, students must maintain an overall weighted average of 70% with no more than 1.0 unsatisfactory course attempts in any given academic year.

### **Withdrawal**

If, after Year 3, students wish to continue only in the general BMus program, they will be permitted to progress into the fourth year of the program provided they have met the progression requirements.

If, after Year 4, students wish to withdraw from either the Fanshawe or Western portions of the degree/diploma, they should consult their respective institution to determine which credits may be applied in a transfer to another program within one of the participating institutions.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN MUSIC**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Students must have an average of 70% or higher in 3.0 principal courses, including Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, plus 1.0 additional course, with no mark in these principal courses below 60%, and a passing grade in the remaining 2.0 courses.

#### **Module**

9.0 courses:

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G.

**7.5 additional courses** in Music at the 2000 level or above.

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y,** and Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.



**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **MAJOR IN MUSIC**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first year requirements, including Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G, or permission of the Faculty.

#### **Module**

6.0 courses:

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G.

**4.5 additional courses in Music** at the 2000 level or above.

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y,** and Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **MINOR IN MUSIC**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first year requirements, including Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G and Music 1750F/G, or permission of the Faculty.

#### **Module**

4.0 courses:

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2750F/G, Music 2671F/G.

**2.5 additional courses** in Music at the 2000 level or above.

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y,** and Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **SPECIALIZATION IN MUSIC ADMINISTRATIVE STUDIES**

### **Admission Requirements**

Recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an interview. Completion of first year requirements with no failures, including:

**1.0 course** from: MOS 1021A/B, MOS 1023A/B.

**2.0 courses** from: Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, and one of Music 1750F/G or Music 1730A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Calculus 1000A/B, Calculus 1301A/B, Calculus 1500A/B, Calculus 1501A/B; Mathematics 1225A/B, Mathematics 1228A/B, Mathematics 1229A/B, or Mathematics 1600A/B.

**1.5 course** from a faculty other than Music.

After first year, to enter the Specialization students must have:

- a) achieved an overall average of 70% on the last 5.0 courses;
- b) a minimum cumulative average of 65%.

### **Module**

10.0 courses:

**1.0 course** normally taken in second year from: MOS 2181A/B and a 2000-level or above MOS course; or Psychology 2061A/B and Psychology 2070A/B.

**1.0 course** normally taken in second year: Business Administration 2257.

**3.0 courses** from: MOS 2310A/B, MOS 2320A/B, MOS 3280F/G, MOS 3330A/B, MOS 3360A/B, MOS 3361A/B.

**2.5 courses** from Department of Music Research and Composition at the 2000 level or above.

**2.5 courses** from Don Wright Faculty of Music at the 2000 level or above.

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 course~~s~~ from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y,** and Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **MAJOR IN POPULAR MUSIC STUDIES**

### **Admission Requirements**

Recommendation of the Faculty on the basis of an interview. Completion of first-year requirements, including a mark of at least 60% in each of the following courses: Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1730A/B, and 1.0 course from: English 1020-1999, Film Studies 1020E, Film Studies 1022, World Literatures and Cultures 1030, the former Comparative Literature and Culture 1020.

### **Module**

6.0 courses:

**0.5 course** from: Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y.

**0.5 course** Music 2736A/B.

**0.5 course** from: Music 3730A/B, Music 3737A/B, the former Music 3731A/B.

**3.5 courses** from: Music 2171A/B/Y, Music 2695A/B, Music 2700A/B, Music 2701A/B, Music 2702A/B, Music 2703A/B/Y, Music 2704A/B/Y, Music 2734A/B, Music 3713A/B/Y, Music 3730A/B, Music 3733A/B, Music 3734A/B, Music 3735A/B, Music 3736A/B, Music 3737A/B, Music 3738A/B, Music 3739A/B, Music 4735A/B, Music 4740A/B/Y, the former Music 3731A/B.

**1.0 courses** from: English 2017, any 2000 level or higher Film Studies course, Sociology 2106A/B.

**Note:** A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y,** and Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

## **Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **HONOURS SPECIALIZATION IN MUSIC/HBA**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Arts with Honours Specialization in Music and a BA in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the Bachelor of Music with Honours Specialization in Music in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

### **Admission Requirements**

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Arts with Honours Specialization in Music. Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for Years 1 and 2 of the Bachelor of Arts with Honours Specialization in Music, including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

### **Module/Program Information**

#### **Year 1\***

**2.0 courses:** Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G.

**3.0 non-music courses.**

#### **Year 2**

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G.

**1.0 course:** Business Administration 2257.

**Up to 2.5 additional courses in Music.**

## Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

### All students will take:

Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K,  
Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K,  
Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K,  
Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K,  
Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

**Years 4 and 5** (5.0 Music courses, and up to 2.5 additional courses in Music if not completed in Year 2, and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

A minimum of 7.5 Music elective courses must be completed for the module in Years 2 through 5 at the 2000-level or above.

\*First-year students must include 1.0 course from each of two of the three categories (A, B, and C). At least 1.0 course must be chosen from each of the three categories (A, B and C).

\*\*No more than 7.0 courses numbered 1000-1999 may be used to fulfill the BA degree requirements.

\*\*\* A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and** Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.

## HBA2

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

### 2.5 courses:

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other

business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.

- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **3.5 additional business electives.**

#### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

#### **Progression Standards**

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the BA (Honours Specialization in Music) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000-level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in the Music module, and a passing grade in each option.

#### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or BA (Honours Specialization in Music) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

#### **Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during Years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

**Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with Honours Specialization in Music and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

**Graduation With Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

**International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined Music/HBA degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

**MAJOR IN MUSIC/HBA**

The combined degree programs are administered on behalf of the Richard Ivey School of Business and the Don Wright Faculty of Music.

The combined program is a five-year program leading to a Bachelor of Arts with Major in Music and a Bachelor of Arts in Honours Business Administration (HBA). In Years 1 and 2, students are registered in the BA (Major in Music) in the Don Wright Faculty of Music and follow the normal curriculum for this degree. In Year 3, students are registered in the HBA program. Students are registered in the combined program in Years 4 and 5.

**Admission Requirements**

Students must meet normal admission requirements for both programs. Normally, students apply to the HBA program during their second year in the Bachelor of Arts (Music Major). Students applying to the Ivey Business School's Advanced Entry Opportunity (AEO) are also eligible to be considered for the combined program. Admission is competitive and limited.

To be eligible for consideration for admission to the combined program, in the first two years, students must complete all requirements for years one and two of the Bachelor of Arts (Music Major), including Business Administration 2257. In the first two years, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 78%, a minimum mark of 70% in Business Administration 2257, and no mark less than 60%. They must also gain admission to the HBA program through the regular application process.

## Module/Program Information

### Year 1\*

**2.0 courses:** Music 1649A/B, Music 1651A/B, Music 1710F/G, Music 1750F/G.

**3.0 non-music courses.**

### Year 2

**1.5 courses:** Music 2651A/B, Music 2671F/G, Music 2750F/G.

**1.0 course:** Business Administration 2257.

**Up to 2.5 additional courses in Music.**

### Year 3 – HBA1

The third year of the undergraduate program in Business Administration consists of an integrated set of courses (7.5 courses) designed to give a basic understanding of the functions and the interrelationships of the major areas of management, as well as to develop problem-solving and action-planning skills.

**All students will take:** Business Administration 3300K, Business Administration 3301K, Business Administration 3302K, Business Administration 3303K, Business Administration 3304K, Business Administration 3311K, Business Administration 3316K, Business Administration 3321K, Business Administration 3322K, Business Administration 3323K.

**Years 4 and 5** (2.0 Music courses, and up to 2.5 additional courses in Music if not completed in Year 2, and 6.0 HBA2 credits).

A minimum of 4.5 Music elective courses must be completed for the module in Years 2 through 5 at the 2000-level or above.

\*First-year students must include 1.0 course from each of two of the three categories (A, B, and C). At least 1.0 course must be chosen from each of the three categories (A, B and C).

\*\*No more than 7.0 courses numbered 1000-1999 may be used to fulfill the BA degree requirements.

\*\*\* A maximum of 1.0 courses from Music 2171A/B/Y, **Music 2700A/B, 2701A/B, 2702A/B, 2703A/B/Y, 2704A/B/Y, 2707A/B/Y, 2708A/B/Y, 2709A/B/Y, and** Music 2801A/B, ~~and Music 2700A/B through Music 2709A/B/Y~~ may be counted toward the module.



## **HBA2**

**Years 4 and 5** (HBA requirements can be taken over Year 4 or 5 – except Business 4569 must be taken in Year 4).

### **2.5 courses:**

- International Perspective Requirement: Business Administration 4505A/B (0.5 course).
- Corporations and Society Perspectives Requirement: At least one 0.5 course from Business Administration - Corporations and Society designated electives offered during the academic year (Business Administration 4538A/B, Business Administration 4539A/B, Business Administration 4588A/B, Business Administration 4625A/B) or other business elective as determined and approved by the HBA Program Director to satisfy this requirement.
- Managerial Accounting Requirement: Business Administration 4624A/B (0.5 course).
- Applied Project Requirement: Business Administration 4569 (1.0 course).

### **3.5 additional business electives.**

#### **Program Requirements**

Students registered in the combined program are expected to abide by all guidelines associated with each of the individual programs.

Students in the combined program must meet the normal progression standards for both the Bachelor of Arts (Music Major) and HBA programs. Students enrolled in HBA1 (Year 3) must attain a minimum weighted average of at least 78%. In Years 4 and 5, students must attain a minimum weighted average of 75% in their 4000 level HBA2 courses. They also must attain a minimum average of 70% with no grade less than 60% in the Music module, and a passing grade in each option.

#### **Failure to Meet Progression Standards**

A student who fails to meet the combined program progression standards in any year must withdraw from the combined program. However, a student who has met the progression standards of either the HBA or Bachelor of Arts (Music Major) program will be allowed to proceed to the next year of that program. If the progression standards of both individual programs have been satisfied, the student may continue in either program and may petition the School or Faculty whose program was not selected for permission to complete that program at a later date. A student who is required to withdraw from the combined program and wishes to pursue either of the individual programs or both programs through a concurrent degree, must complete all the degree requirements of the individual program or concurrent programs in order to graduate from that/those program(s).

**Dean's Honour List**

At the Richard Ivey School of Business, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during their first year of HBA. Students enrolled in Years 4 and 5 of the combined program are considered for the Dean's Honour List in Year 5 only. Only grades obtained in 4000-level Business courses will be used in calculating averages for the purposes of determination of Dean's Honour List standing. Courses taken outside the Business School are excluded. Calculations for Ivey Scholar and Gold Medals are completed in the same way.

In the Don Wright Faculty of Music, students are considered for the Dean's Honour List during years 1, 2, 4 and 5, based on achieving an average of 80% or higher, with no failed courses, during that academic year.

**Graduation**

Upon completion of this combined program, students will receive a BA with Major in Music and a BA in Honours Business Administration.

**Graduation With Distinction**

Eligibility to graduate "With Distinction" for each degree is determined by each Faculty.

**International Exchange Programs**

Students in the combined HBA/Music degree program may be eligible to participate in academic exchange programs. Interested students should discuss exchange options with the HBA Program Office and Don Wright Faculty of Music.

**Fees**

Students pay the prevailing fees as determined by the University policy on combined programs. Contact the Office of the Registrar for details.

## FACULTY OF SCIENCE

### DEPARTMENT OF COMPUTER SCIENCE

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

#### **COMPUTER SCIENCE 3319A/B DATABASES I**

##### **Course Description**

A study of relational databases. Theoretical concepts will be covered, including relational algebra and relational calculus. Commercially available database systems will be used to demonstrate concepts such as Structured-Query-Language (SQL), writing code to connect and query a database, query optimization, Atomicity-Consistency-Isolation-Durability (ACID) concepts, and database design.

**Antirequisite(s):** **Artificial Intelligence Systems Engineering 3309A/B**, Computer Science 3120A/B, Digital Humanities 3220A/B, and Software Engineering 3309A/B.

**Prerequisite(s):** Computer Science 2210A/B and Computer Science 2211A/B.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

#### **COMPUTER SCIENCE 3340A/B ANALYSIS OF ALGORITHMS I**

##### **Course Description**

Upper and lower time and space bounds; levels of intractability; graph algorithms; greedy algorithms; dynamic algorithms; exhaustive search techniques; parallel algorithms.

**Prerequisite(s):** Computer Science 2210A/B and Computer Science 2211A/B; Computer Science 2214A/B or Mathematics 2155F/G; or registration in the fourth year of a BESC program in **Artificial Intelligence Systems Engineering (AISE)** **or** Computer Engineering.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

**COMPUTER SCIENCE 4417A/B  
UNSTRUCTURED DATA**

**Course Description**

Management and analysis of unstructured data, with a focus on text data, for example transaction logs, news text, article abstracts, and microblogs. Overview of unstructured image, audio, and video data. Hands-on experience with modern distributed data management and analysis infrastructure.

**Antirequisite(s):** Computer Science 4433A/B/Y if taken during Fall/Winter 2017 or 2018.

**Prerequisite(s):** Artificial Intelligence Systems Engineering 3309A/B or Computer Science 3319A/B.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

# FACULTY OF SOCIAL SCIENCE

## DEPARTMENT OF POLITICAL SCIENCE

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### **POLITICAL SCIENCE 3331F/G CONTROVERSIES IN CANADIAN LEGAL JUSTICE**

#### **Course Description**

This course **examines contemporary legal controversies in Canada, including the relationship between Indigenous people and the legal realm, the gendered and raced composition of the judiciary, judicial misconduct and its regulation, lawyer ethics when defending guilty clients, and the most pressing legal issues currently before our courts** ~~will provide an overview of Canada's judicial system and constitution. The course will focus on the impact of judicial decisions on the federal system, the shift to a constitutional discourse based on rights, and issues relating to the judiciary such as the rule of law and judicial independence.~~

**Prerequisite(s):** Political Science 2230E or Political Science 2530F/G.

**Extra Information:** 2 lecture hours.

Course Weight: 0.50

# HURON UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

## MANAGEMENT AND ORGANIZATIONAL STUDIES

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

### **ANIMAL ETHICS AND SUSTAINABILITY LEADERSHIP 1100F/G ANIMALS AND SUSTAINABILITY**

#### **Course Description**

An introduction to the multidisciplinary study of animals, human-animal relationships, and environmental sustainability challenges and opportunities.

**Extra Information:** 3 lecture hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

### **ANIMAL ETHICS AND SUSTAINABILITY LEADERSHIP 4000F/G MAJOR RESEARCH PROJECT**

#### **Course Description**

An advanced and in-depth study of a significant animal ethics and sustainability challenge and opportunity with a focus on both scholarly research and analysis and the development of real-world recommendations.

**Prerequisites:** Enrolment in third or fourth year of an Animal Ethics and Sustainability Leadership module and permission of the AESL coordinator.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours, delivered through guided independent learning or a senior seminar.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **MAJOR IN ANIMAL ETHICS AND SUSTAINABILITY LEADERSHIP**

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first year requirements with a minimum average of 60% in 4.0 courses. 1.0 course must be an essay designate.

### **Module**

6.0 courses:

**2.0 courses** in Animal Ethics and Sustainability: Global Great Books 3001F/G, GLE 3011F/G, MOS 2185A/B, Philosophy 3725F/G.

**1.0 course** from the Foundational Knowledge group: GLE 2003F/G, MOS 2255F/G, Philosophy 2228F/G, Philosophy 2700F/G.

**1.5 course** from the Animal Ethics and Sustainability group: **AESL 4000F/G**, **Anthropology 2268F/G**, CGS 3517F/G, CGS 3527F/G, CGS 3531F/G, Geography 2156A/B, GLE 2004F/G, GLE 2005F/G, History 3707F/G, MOS 3423F/G, Philosophy 3850F/G, Political Science 3379E, Religious Studies 2120A/B, Religious Studies 2160F/G.

**1.5 course** from the Organizational Leadership and Success group: Global Great Books 3300F/G, MOS 2155A/B, MOS 2181A/B, MOS 2182F/G, **MOS 2222A/B**, MOS 2250A/B, MOS 3250A/B, MOS 3331A/B, MOS 3388A/B, MOS 4481F/G, MOS 4998F/G.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

## **MINOR IN ANIMAL ETHICS AND SUSTAINABILITY LEADERSHIP**

### **Admission Requirements**

Completion of first year requirements with a minimum average of 60% in 4.0 courses. 1.0 course must be an essay designate.

### **Module**

4.0 courses:

**2.0 courses** in Animal Ethics and Sustainability: Global Great Books 3001F/G, GLE 3011F/G, MOS 2185A/B, Philosophy 3725F/G.

**0.5 course** from the Foundational Knowledge group: GLE 2003F/G, MOS 2255F/G, Philosophy 2228F/G, Philosophy 2700F/G.

**0.5 course** from the Animal Ethics and Sustainability group: **AESL 4000F/G**, **Anthropology 2268F/G**, CGS 3517F/G, CGS 3527F/G, CGS 3531F/G, Geography 2156A/B, GLE 2004F/G, GLE 2005F/G, History 3707F/G, MOS 3423F/G, Philosophy 3850F/G, Political Science 3379E, Religious Studies 2120A/B, Religious Studies 2160F/G.

**1.0 course** from the Organizational Leadership and Success group: Global Great Books 3300F/G, MOS 2155A/B, MOS 2181A/B, MOS 2182F/G, **MOS 2222A/B**, MOS 2250A/B, MOS 3250A/B, MOS 3331A/B, MOS 3388A/B, MOS 4481F/G, MOS 4998F/G.



# KING'S UNIVERSITY COLLEGE

## DEPARTMENT OF ENGLISH, FRENCH AND WRITING

**Course Introduction – Effective September 1, 2025, the following course be introduced:**

### **WRITING 2240F/G WRITING FOR THANATOLOGY**

#### **Course Description**

An introduction to writing techniques and conventions required for success in the field of Thanatology. Using thanatological discourse, concepts, and issues, this course helps students build the academic and cultural literacies needed for effective scholarly and public-facing communication, including critical thinking, application of theory, research, argumentation, revision, editing, and citation.

**Prerequisite(s):** Any 0.5 from Writing 1002F/G, Writing 1020F/G, Writing 1021F/G, Writing 1022F/G, Writing 1025F/G, Writing 1030F/G, Writing 1031F/G, Writing 1032F/G, Writing 2101F/G, or permission of the Department.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours.  
Course Weight: 0.50

**Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:**

### **ENGLISH 1901E FOUNDATIONS IN THE NEW LIBERAL ARTS**

#### **Course Description**

The English Literature unit of the King's Foundations in ~~t~~**The** New Liberal Arts is supplemented by the study of art and music. It investigates influential works of literature from ancient to modern times through an interdisciplinary perspective, with special focus on innovations in literary form and cultural contexts.

**Prerequisite(s):** Must be registered in the **King's Foundations in The** New Liberal Arts, or the former Western Thought and Civilization.

**Corequisite(s):** History 1901E and Philosophy 1901E.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. There may be additional costs associated with field trips. **Capstone conference at end of term.**  
Course Weight: 1.00

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **MINOR IN WRITING AND SOCIAL CHANGE**

#### **Admission Requirements**

Restricted to students enrolled at the Affiliated University Colleges. Completion of first year requirements, including 0.5 from Writing 1020F/G, Writing 1022F/G, **Writing 1032F/G** ~~with a minimum grade of 65%~~ or Writing 2101F/G with a minimum grade of 60%. ~~or with~~ **With** permission of the Department, **other Writing courses may be used.**

#### **Module**

4.0 courses:

**2.5 courses** from: Writing 2202F/G, Writing 2230F/G, **Writing 2240F/G**, Writing 2260F/G, Writing 2262F/G, Writing 2301F/G/Z, Writing 2208F/G, Writing 3100F/G, Writing 3700F/G, Writing 4700F/G.

**1.5 courses** from: Writing at the 2200 level or above, Speech 2001, English 2299F/G, English 3998E, English 3999F/G. Students may substitute a maximum of 1.0 approved non-Writing essay course toward this requirement, and should contact the ~~Assistant~~ **Writing** Coordinator, ~~Writing~~ (Department of English, French and Writing at King's), for further information and specific course approvals.

**Program Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following changes be made:**

### **CERTIFICATE IN THE TEACHING AND PRACTICE OF WRITING**

The Certificate in the Teaching and Practice of Writing, restricted to students currently enrolled at the Affiliate **University** Colleges, is designed to support and complement King's programs such as Social Work, Social Justice and Peace Studies, Thanatology, Catholic Studies for Teachers, Childhood and **Youth Studies** ~~Social Institutions~~, and Disability Studies. It aims to provide students with theoretical frameworks and practical experiences related to rhetoric and composition, with a view to improving both their own communication skills and their ability to provide pedagogic, critical, and editorial feedback to others. The courses will include both lectures and practice. All degree courses may be credited toward other undergraduate programs. Undergraduate students from the Affiliate **University** Colleges may apply for admission, subject to prerequisites and general admission requirements.

#### **Admission Requirements**

Restricted to students enrolled at the Affiliate **University** Colleges. Completion of first year requirements, including **0.5 from** Writing 1020F/G ~~or~~ Writing 1022F/G ~~with a minimum grade of 65%,~~ **Writing 1032F/G,** or Writing 2101F/G with a minimum grade of 60% ~~or~~. **With** permission of the Department, **other Writing courses may be used.**

~~This is a limited enrolment program and possession of the minimum admission requirements does not guarantee admission.~~

#### **Module**

To qualify for the Certificate in the Teaching and Practice of Writing, students must achieve an overall average of 65% in the following **3.0 courses**:

**2.0 courses** from: Writing 2260F/G, Writing 2262F/G, Writing 2301F/G/Z, **Writing 2240F/G,** Writing 2208F/G, Writing 3100F/G, Writing 3700F/G.

**1.0 course** from: Any Writing **course** at the 2000 level or higher, Speech 2001, English 3998E, English 3999F/G and any 0.5 English course at the 2200 level or higher.

Students may substitute a maximum of 1.0 approved non-Writing essay course toward this requirement, and should contact the Writing ~~Program~~-Coordinator (Department of English, French and Writing) for further information and specific course approvals.

## DEPARTMENT OF HISTORY

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### HISTORY 1901E

#### FOUNDATIONS IN THE NEW LIBERAL ARTS

##### Course Description

The History unit of the King's Foundations in ~~the~~ The New Liberal Arts introduces students to major processes, personalities, and events in the historical development of the modern world and what is described as "the West", while developing and refining students' fundamental skills in historical methodology.

**Antirequisite(s):** History 1801E.

**Prerequisite(s):** Must be registered in the King's Foundations in ~~the~~ The New Liberal Arts, or the former Western Thought and Civilization.

**Corequisite(s):** English 1901E and Philosophy 1901E.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. There may be additional costs associated with field trips. **Field trips and Experiential Learning support this course. Capstone conference at end of term.**

Course Weight: 1.00

## DEPARTMENT OF PHILOSOPHY

Course Revision – Effective September 1, 2025, the following change(s) be made:

### PHILOSOPHY 1901E FOUNDATIONS IN THE NEW LIBERAL ARTS

#### Course Description

The Philosophy unit of the King's Foundations in ~~t~~**The** New Liberal Arts is an interdisciplinary historical survey of some of the most important philosophers (Plato, Aristotle, Descartes, Marx, Nietzsche, Derrida) and artists (da Vinci, Michelangelo, Rembrandt, Dali) that have shaped the course of Western thought and our contemporary world.

**Antirequisite(s):** History 1801E.

**Prerequisite(s):** Must be registered in **the King's Foundations in T**~~t~~he New Liberal Arts, or the former Western Thought and Civilization.

**Corequisite(s):** History 1901E and English 1901E.

**Extra Information:** 3 hours. There may be additional costs associated with field trips. **Capstone conference at end of term.**  
Course Weight: 1.00